Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohig 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEEYING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority wil take place on Tuesday, March 29, 2022 in the Board Room of the Authority, 1240
West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OM 44113 for consideration of the listed items and such other items that rmay
properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

In accordance with the Ohio Open Meatings Act and Mouse Bill 51, signed into law on February 17, 2022
and effective immediately through June 30, 2022, this meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board
Page www RidaRTA comy/board via the meeting date for staff and members of the public. House 8ill 51
allows Board members to participate by telephone or video and be considered present as if in person. It
also allows Board members to vote and be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum while
attending hy telephoneg or video,

Members of the public may attend in-person. Based on Centers for Disease Control (CDC) guidance to
continue to avoid large events and gatherings and Qhio Departrment of Public Health advice that
businesses and other entities may continue to require mitigation measures, as well as RTA's interest in
protecting community and employee health and safety, the following measures will be in place for in-
person attendance;

1. To allow for social distancing, RTA Board Room capacity is limited to forty-four (44) people. To
accommodate members of the public, RTA will limit the number of staff permitted in the Board
Room.

2. All persons entering RTA's Main Office Building ("MOB") at 1240 West 6 Street are required to
wear a mask/face covering and maintain a distance of six feet or more from other individuals who
are not members of their family or household. The maskface covering must be cloth or other
fabric and worn to cover the person's nose, mouth and chin. if a person entering the building
doas not have a mask, one can be provided to them,

3. All persons entering RTA's MOB will be ternperature screanad for COVID-19 in accordance with
guidance provided by the CDC and the Cuyahoga County Board of Health, If the screening
indicates that the person may be infected with COVID-19, that individual will be denied entry.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www. riderta.com/board), on RTA's Facebook
page, and RTA's Twilter page.

9.00 A M. Annual Meeting — agenda attached

Committee of The Whole
+ Public Square - Presentation on the proposed Public Square collaboration.

Audit, Safety Compliance And Real Estate Cornmittee
s |niernal Audit Quarterly Report - Presentation of 4th quarter 2021 audit work and 2022
Audit Plan,

Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached. -

l. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive

ILB:tab

Attachment



V.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustess Annual Meeting
March 29, 2022

Call to order of Annual Meeting

Rolt Cail

Certification regarding notice of meeting

Conduct Annual Meeting of the Board of Trustees

A. Nominations and election of the Office of President
B. Nominations and election of the Office of Vice President

Adjournment of Annual Meeting



I,

AGENDA
RTA COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE BOARD

Tuesday, March 29, 2022

Committee Members: President Charles P. Lucas (Chair)
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss (Vice Chair)
Mayor Anthony D. Biasiolta
Ms. Roberta Duarte
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Mayor Paul A, Koomar
Ms. Valarie J. McCall
Ms. Luz N, Peliot
Mayor David E. Weiss

Roll Calt

Public Square - Presentation on the proposed Public Square
coilaboration. .

Presenters:

¢ Mike Schipper, Deputy General Manager, Engineering & Project
Management, RTA
Floun'say R. Caver, Deputy General Manager, Operations, RTA
India L. Birdsong, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, RTA
Nora Romanoff, Associate Director, LAND Studio
Sanaa Julien, CEQ, Group Plan Commission

Adjourn



} Greater Cleveland Interaffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rey, Charles P, Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong -
General Manager, Chief Exacutive foicer@é%)
Date: March 24, 2022
Subject; Public Square Collaboration

At the March 29, 2022 Committee of the Whole meeting, staff along with a representative of the
Group Plan Commission will present proposed transportation, safety and security improvements
to Public Square. The presentation will address roles and responsibilities in the design and
construction of the proposed improvements and GCRTA's proposed financial commitment
towards the project.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

1B/mjs



AGENDA
RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, March 29, 2022

Committee Members: Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss - Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Mayor Paul A, Koomar
Ms. Valarie J. McCall
Mayor David E. Weiss

3 Roli Call

fl. [nternal Audit Quarterly Report —~ Review of 4th quarter 2021 Internal Audit
work and 2022 Internal Audit Plan,

It Adjourn



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, March 29, 2022

Call to order
Roli Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting

Public Qath of Office:
« Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta, Seven Hills

Approval of Board Meeting minutes:
« February 15, 2022 Board Mesting
= March 1, 2022 Special Board Meeting

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items
« Inperson
» Phone: 440-276-4600
«  Webform (comments will be forwarded to staff)

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
« Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report

» Chair: TBD

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Commitiee report

+« Chair: Karen Gabriel Moss

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report

« Chair; Valarie J. McCall

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
« Board Liaison; Roberta Duarte

Ad Hoc Cormmittee reports:

+«  Ad Hoeo Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair

* Ad Hoc¢ Technology Committee - Luz Pellot, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

introduction of resolutions:

A. 2022-24 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-184 with Johnson Cantrols Fire
Protection LP for Project 19,12 — Woodhill Garage Sprinkier System



RTA Board of Trusteas
March 29, 2022

Page 2

16.

17.
18.
19.
20
21,

Expansion, as specified and as required, in an amount not to excead
$124,500.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget)

B, 2022-25 — Authorizing the General Manager to enter into a lease agreement
with PNC Bank, National Association for property at the Puritas - West 150th
Street Rapid Transit Station, located at 4200 West 150th Street, Claveland,
Ohio 44135, for a renewal term of two years with options for two renewal terms
of one year each

C. 2022-26 — Authorizing a lease agreament with 2 Birds Shuttie and Detall, |LL.C
for property at the Puritas-West 150th Street Rapid Transit Station located at
4200 West 150th Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, for a renewal term of two
years at $12,000.00 per year

D. 2022-27 - Approving the 2022 Internal Audit Plan

E. 2022-28 -~ Approving a new three-year collective bargaining agreement
covering conditions of employment with Local 268 of the Amalgamated Transit
Union

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

General Fund Revenue — status as of February 28, 2022 versus 2021 aciuas
General Fund Revenue — status as of February 28, 2022 versus the 2022
budget . .

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2022, actual receipts
through March 2022

inventory of Treasury Investments as of February 28, 2022

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as of
February 28, 2022

sSummary of investment Performance, Year to Date through February 28, 2022
Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of February, 2022
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of February 28, 2022

Banking and Financial Relationships as of February 28, 2022

mo O w»

—Iom

General Manager's Report
President's Report

Old Business

New Business

FPublic comments (2 minutes):
+ Inperson
» Phone: 440-276-4600
«  Webform (comments will be forwarded to staff)



RTA Board of Trustees
March 29, 2022
Page 3

22. The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 26, 2022 in the Board
Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland,
Ohio 44113, This meeting will be five-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www. RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date. The public is welcome to
attend in person.

23. Adjournment



Minutes

Special RTA Board Meeting
9:45 a.m., Tuesday, March 1, 2022

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Byrne, Duarte, Joyce, Koomar, McCall, Pallot, Serrano, Weiss

Not present: Moss

Staff: Benford, Birdsong, Caver, Coffey, Cottrell, Davidson, Ferraro, Fields, Flaig, Garofoli, Gautam,
Kirkland, Metealf, Miller, Petit, Schipper, Talley, Temming, Togher, Ulrich, Walker-Minor

Publi¢: Gibbons, Loh, Pesuit

The meeting was called to order at 9:45 a.m. There were nine (8) board members present. [n
accordance with the Ohio Open Meetings Act and House Bill 51, signed into law on February 17,
2022 and effective immediately through June 30, 2022, this meeting will be live-straamed on RTA's
Board Page www . RideRTA com/board via the meeting date for staff and members of the public.
House Bill 51 allows Board members to participate by telephone or video and be considered present
as if in person. it also allows Board members to vote and be counted for the purpose of determining
a quorum while attending by telephone or video.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of
this Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Reasolution

A, 2022-23 - Expressing appreciation to Leo Serranc for his service as a member of the Board
of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and extending best wishes
for many years to come, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by
Mayor Byrne and approved by unanimous vole.

Mr. Serrano said he went to Divinity School and his mentor taught him that we all have one eternal
assignment and one temporary gig. Moreover, when you know that, you know that your purpose is
to serve. Our customers are diverse and RTA is the lifeline for tham. Mayor Byrne thanked him for
helping him when he joined the Board. Ms. Birdsong added that he was a joy to work with and that
he is a champion for diversity. His leadership and stewardship is appreciated. Ms. McCall added
that Mr. Serrano is a committed and great Board member and that they served through some
challenging times. Rev. Lucas thanked Mr. Serrano for his service, He has a good heart and was a

good Board member,

Executive Session Requeasted

Rev. Lucas asked for a motion to go into executive session to review the negotiations or bargaining
sessions with public employees concemning their compensation or other terms and conditions of their
employment. it was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Koomar. Thare were eight (8) ayes
and none opposed. Mayor Weiss had to step out.

It was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Keomar to come out of executive session. There
were nine (9) ayes and none opposed.

The meseting was adjourned at 10:31 a.m.

Prasident
Atast:

Secretary-Treasurer



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:07 a.m. February 15, 2022
Board Members: lucas, (Chair), Byrne, Duarte, Koornar, McCall, Pellot, Serrano, Weiss

Not present: Moss (remote), Joyce (remote)

Staff: Benford, Birdsong, Burney, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Davidson, Fields, Fleig, Freilich, Garofoli,
Gautam, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Paull, Petit, Schipper, Talley, Young, Walker-Minor

Public: Gibbons, Loh

The meeting to order at .07 a.m. The secretary called the roll and reported that eight (8) board
members were present.

This meeting was live-streamed on RTA’s Facebook page (www.facebook comfrideRTA) for staff and
members of the public. Based on Centers for Disease Control guidance to continue to avoid large
events and gatherings and Ohio Department of Public Health advice that businesses may continue to
require mitigation measures, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and employee health
and safety, several measures were put in place for in-person attendance, which are spelled out on the
meeting notice. The public was allowed to attend the meeting in-person.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this
Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with. ‘

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the January 25, 2022 Board Meeting had been
previously distributed and reviewad, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections.
There were no corrections, The minutes were approved,

Executive Session

The Executive Session originally scheduled was cancelled,

Public Comments — Agenda ltems (comments were subritted in-person and by phone)

1. Chris Martin — Cleveland, OH — RTA keeps having repeated problems with the technical part
of live streaming meetings. Meetings are held in the morning when the public cannet attend,
The audio and video does not consistently work. Public comments are not accepted via email
anymore.,

Mr. Petit apologized for the tech issues. They are currently streaming live on YouTube as a
test today and on Facebook. There are inconsistencies with logging on to Facebook due to
changes to their platform that are out of our control. They have a stream on YouTube with
audio that is work that will be posted for the public,



RTA Board of Trustees
February 15, 2022
Page 2 of 6

Commitiee Reports

Mayor Weiss announced that the performance appraisal for the CEQ/GM is due in a few weeks for
the Compensation Commitiee review.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There were no reports.

Ad Hoc Commitiee Reports

Ms. Peliot said the Ad Moc Tech Committee would meet Feb, 23, 2022 at 5 p.m. in the Board Room.

introduction of New Employees/Promotions
Tiffany Holder, the new Talent Acquisition Manager introduced the new hires and promotions.

New Hires.

Ricardo Benson, Operator
Chaz Derrico, Operator
Yolanda Eggleton, Operator
James Johnson, Operator
Phillip Johnson, Operator
Julius McCorkle, Operator

lan Ramsay, Operator
Deneashia Robinson, Operator
Chrishael Thompson, Operator
‘10 Ronald Timberlake, Operator
11. Jeffery Tyler, Operator

LN, R WA -

Promotions:
1. Bryan Dembkowski, Assistant Equipment Manager
2. Gerald Waite, Service Quality Supervisor, Rail

President Lucas asked for the number of open operator positions. Dr. Caver said there are 900
operators in the budget (350-400 Hayden, 300 Triskett, 100 Paratransit, 100 Rait}). They are 100
operators short. Ms. Birdsong said there has been a strong effort to close the gap with hiring. Mr.
Fields said the shortage is on bus and paratransit. Over the last 7 and 8 months, hiring initiatives
have been launched to address the shortage with recruitment and cutreach to Ohio Means Jobs, Tri-
C and other community agencies that help influx more applicants. Currently, 50 plus people is in
training. About 70 plus people are applicants in the process. They will continue {0 do more outreach
events as COVID provides an opportunity to be more visible in the community, Of the 50, 20+ go to
Hayden and Triskett and 20 to paratransif. Mr. Fields said they should be able to close the gap in
May/June. Ms. Birdsong added that many things go into the hiring process including attrition,
retirement, discipline and accidents. She will provide a quarterly update on this item. Thereis a
dropout rate with drug testing and training. We should hit half the goal in the next quartar and hit the
goal by year-end.

Ms. Pellot asked what the time frame is from hiring to working as an operator. Ms. Fields said the
candidate has a two-four week time frame for selection. Once hired, they have 8-10 hours of training
before they start driving on the streets, Depending on the student’s aptitude, that could be less or
more by one or two weeks. Ms. Duarte mentioned that during the holidays, she met with Marketing
and HR about connecting with the community. HR is aware of how COVID has impacted human
behavior, Staff is working hard to better train new hires, Ms, Moss asked where are the recruiting



RTA Board of Trustees
February 15, 2022

Page 3 of 6

evenis held and what has worked best in the recruitment process during the Pandemic. Mr. Fields
said the event based job fairs last 3™ and 4% quarter at the West Park Station have been successful.
A number of agencies prepare candidates for the job fairs. They have had virtual interview days also.

introduction of Resolutions:

A.

2022-13 — Expressing appreciation to the Honorable Michael P. Byrne for his
service as a member of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority and extending best wishes for many years to come, the adoption
of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote,

President Lucas thanked Mayor Bymne for his service, A plague was presented to him.
Ms. Birdsong thanked him for his guidance and questions.

2022-14 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-123 with Safety-Klean Systems, Inc. to provide
parts washer tank services for a three-year period in a total contract amount NTE
$180,546.20 (General Fund, Flest Management Department budgat), the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous
vote.

2022-15 - Authorizing Contract No. 2021-127 with Moore Counseling & Mediation
Services, Inc. to provide an Employee Assistance Program for a base period of three
years with two, one-year options in an amount not to exceed $237,600.00 for the base
three years and an amount not to exceed $79,200.00 for each option year for a total
contract amount not to exceed $396,000.00 (General Fund, Labor & Employee Relations
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by
Mayor Byrne and approved by unanimous vote.

2022-16 - Authorizing Contract No, 2021-188 with Ports Petroleum Co,, Inc,, for the
furnishing of approximately 6,000,000 gallons of Ultra Low Sulfur Riesel fuel, as specified
and as required, for a period of three years, at a price of $.0223/gallon below OPIS index
for year 1, $.0223/gallon below OPIS index for year 2, and $.0223/gallon below OPIS
index for year 3 {General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mr. Serrano and approved by unanimous
vote,

2022-17 — Authorizing Contract No. 2022-05 with Giro, Inc., for maintenance and support
of the Hastus Software System for a period of three years for a total price not to exceed
$960,670.00 (General Fund, Innovation & Technology Division budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous
vote,

2022-18 — Authorizing contract No. 2022-009 with AT&T Corporation to provide managed
fat pipe router services for a period of three years in an amount not to excead
$208,800.00 (General Fund, innovation & Technology Division budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous
vote.

2022-19 — Removing Section 628.03, amending Sections 628,035 and 644.10 and
moving Sections 628.035 and 644.10 from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to the Personnel Policies, the adoption of



RTA Board of Trustees
February 15, 2022
Page 4 of 8

which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous
vote,

H.  2022-20 - Removing Section 628.04 from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and adding a new Section 400.15 to the
Personnel Policies, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by
Mayor Byrne and approved by unanimous vote.

I 2022-21 — Approving the Authority's 2022 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
{(PTASP), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. McCall and

approved by unanimous vote.

Jo 2022-22 - Authorizing an amendment {o an existing utility agreement with Cleveland
Electric Hluminating Company to relocate an existing duct bank in conjunction with
extending electric service to the new Warrensville Van Aken substation (Project No. 60B)
in an amount not to exceed $163,777.12.

Ms. Benford added that this resolution needs a motion for reconsideration. Ms, McCall
made a motion to reconsider. It was seconded by Mr. Serrano. Mayor Byrne asked for
clarification on the reconsideration. Ms. Benford said this item failed last month. There
was a reguest that the City of Shaker Heights pass an ordinance at the 50/5Q sharing.
The ordinance was passed by Shaker Heights. This resolution is now appropriate for
reconsideration. The roll was called. There were seven (7} ayes and one abstention from
Mayor Weiss. The reconsidaration passed.

The roll was called on the resolution. There were seven (7) ayes and one abstention from
Mayor Weiss, The resolution passed.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer, gave the report. The
unemployment data is from the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The U.8. unemployment rate for Jan,
2022 was 4%. The December unemployment rate has steadily shown a decline when comparad to
early 2021. We are experiencing the lowest rates since March 2020. The U.S, rate is at 3.9%. Ohio
is at 4.5%. Cuyahoga County is 4.1%. The employment growth continued in leisure and hospitality,
professional and business services, retail, trade, transportation and warehousing.

At the end of the year, ridership for 2021 was 6.68% below 2020 levels. For Jan. 2022, ridership was
1.22 million riders or 1.7% below Jan, 2021, Passenger fares for Jan 2022 was $1.5 Million or 10.1%
higher than Jan. 2021 and 6.5% higher than the budgeted amount. Mobile ticketing has been strong.
This month it was $366,000, which is 16.56% higher than the same time in Jan 2021, Sales tax has
been strong. Year-end 2021 vs. Year-end 2020 saw a 13.9% increase. Motor vehicles/watercraft
saw a 20.3% increase. Online sales were 43% higher, Regular/Statewide sales were 11.2% higher.

General Manager/CEQ Report

india Birdsong, General Manager/CEQ, presented the report. FTA announced that RTA was awarded
$20.3 million for FFY 2022 for infrastructure. We are working with NOACA and state partners for the
breakout. RTA will take the lion's share because of our size. President Lucas asked if there could be
a communication from the Board to the legislature about the funding award. Ms. Birdsong said staff is
meeting with legislatures in Columbus tomorrow o say thank you and to discuss additional funding.
They will relay the thank you to them on behalf of the Board. Marketing created a TY video to our



RTA Board of Trustees
February 15, 2022
Page 50f 6

legislatures for Ohio Loves Transit week, President Lucas is a part of the video, Mayor Weiss asked
what partial funding means. Ms. Birdsong said the full funding pot is $70 million.

Mr. Schipper explained that the partial funding is out of the Infrastructure, Investment and Jobs Act for
the next five years, Because Congress has not passed the full budget for the U5, government, we
are at a partial funding level instead of a full year level. This represents 3/8 or 4.5 months of the fiscal
year. We do not know what the final numbers will be because of the way the programs are set up.
The 5307 is our Urban grant that funds a lot of the bus related items and some of the rail items. The
5337 is targeted to State of Good Repair, but is targeted to the rail system. The 5339 is bus and bus
facilities. Because of the way the formulas work, tha initial allocation went to the states and now the
transit agencies. That is why it is zero. [tis just the way the law is set up for the distribution of the
formulas. The full budget may be passed by Congress in March, Hopefully the full numbers will be
funded then and brought back to the Board in the Capital Program in May.

The 318 Annual Homeless Stand Down is April 23. RTA will support the event by way of 1-day transit
passes. RTA joins a list of other sponsors. This will help those who need support through transit fo
get back on their feet. TransitStat, the agency’'s performance management program has been
rebranded as Traction as a means to push the performance targets and metrics through the
scorecards. They will track the four success outcomes. They are on track with the customer surveys.
That is the key that is missing in our current data sourcing. An update will be provided for Q1 later in
May. Ms. Walker-Minor said 1,190 surveys were completed yesterday on the bus and rail. Mayor
Koomar asked if this uses the Net Promotor Score methodology. That was confirmed. This is a new
way to look at the data and weighing public opinion along with our deliverables to make sure we are
on track with obtaining the goals in the Strategic Plan. Ms. Moss asked how we are ensuring a
portionable sampling of the bus, rail and paratransit responses. Ms. Birdsong said they can bring
back the details of the breakdown. There is something on the survey that identifies the mode. Ms,
Pellot asked if the survey is in multiple languages. That was confirmed. :

The Community Immunity Bus distributed 36 COVID vaccination shots at the Lunar New Year
celebration at the Asia Plaza. We have to date giving 844 shots through the bus. We are working
with Cleveland Department of Public Health and Care Alliance. CDPH has distributed 516
vaccinations. Care Alliance is responsible for 300 vaccinations, RTA is working with the CAVS and
NBA on the 2022 NBA Ali-Star event. RTA will operate FTA approved trolley service for this event.
Ms. Birdsong wished Rev. Lucas a Happy Birthday. Ms. Pellot asked if RTA ambassadors will be
assisting with the NBA event. Ms. Birdsong said RTA Operations staff and City Year volunteers will
be assisting with wayfinding, etc. Ms. Duarte requested wearing mask be reinforced during this event
while riding RTA. Mr. Schipper said the vaccination bus would be on Public Square, Friday from 9
a.m. — Noon.

Mayor Byrne thanked the staff, directors and Board. He wants the public to realize the hard work
happening at RTA. He thanked the public for attending the meetings and being patient and courteous
with their concerns.

Fresident's Report

He enjoys working with the staff. They continue to learn how to handle providing service during
inclement weather. The staff is working hard on these items and working with the City of Cleveland
and the County. The Election of Officers will occur at the Annual Meeting, March 29, 2022, The
Nominating Committee is Mr, Joyce, Ms, McCall and Mayor Koormar, A letter was sent out requesting
letters of interast by next week. He is happy to turn 81, He is very active in the community and in his
personal life. Seventeen years ago he collapsed in his home. His doctor found a large tumor on his
spine. He was faced with the choice of removing the tumor and being in a wheelchair or leaving it in
and spending his life in a nursing home. He was encouraged by a pamphlet he saw in the hospital



RTA Board of Trustees
February 15, 2022
Page 6 of 6

with the message of not letting a wheelchair define his life. He represents the disabled community in
his position on the Board.

Public Commentis — Non-Agenda lems (comments were submitted in-person and phone

1.

2.

Brian Gibbons — Fairview Park - He thanked Mayor Byrne for his service. A few years ago, he
and CPT met with Mayor Byrne. It was a great meeting and way to get to know the Mayor.
RTA has challenges, but Mayor Byrne was a straight shooter.

Loh - She said we have had good board members who share their expertise. She asked
Mayor Byrne not to forget transit. She thanked Rev, Lucas for his work improving Paratransit
service. She thanked the other board members who will be leaving the Board.

Chris Martin — Cleveland — He is frustrated with RTA and how we handled service during
recent storms. He is concerned about the aperator shields, mask dispensers, all door
boarding on the HealthLine, fare collection and tax levy efforts. He requested the performance
management information be made available to the public.

Ms. Birdsong apologized for the inconvenience to the public due to service issues Jan. 17.
The public's safety was the priority that day. They continue to work with the City on road
safety during inclement storms. Operator shields are on 90% of our vehicles. Operators can
provide mask to riders on request. Staff will make sure they are replenished when needed.
We are embarking on a fare collection program. It will be brought to the Board in the coming
months, The TRACTION data will eventually be made public once the data is populated. All
of these efforts are necessary to entertain a tax levy at the pleasure of the Board.

Ms. Holden ~ She thanked Ms. Birdsong for her work, She is a long time rider. She asked if
RTA could shovel the snow around the bus stops. She takes the bus from the post office at
8745 Broadway. The #18 does not stop at the post office even though there is a bus stop
there, She asked for service to go around the stores at Steelyard.

Upcorning Meetinas

The next regular Board meeting and the Annual Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 29, 2022
in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA)
and YouTube for staff and members of the public. The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:20 a.m.

Attest;

Prasident

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100-326
07-03-97

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION, Rasolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 19.12 - WOODHILL GARAGE SPRINKLER 2022-24

VENDOR: JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE PROTECTION LP March 24, 2022
AMOUNT:  $124,500.00 Initiator:

SYSTEM EXPANSION Date:

Engineering & Project
Development
Depariment

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment I Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 19.12 — Woodhill Garage Sprinkler System Expansion.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The expansion of the Woodhilt Garage Sprinkler System was
recommended by the Authority's property insurance company. The work to be performed under
this contract includes, but is not limited to, decommissioning and removal of the proprietary alarm
system within the office in quadrant 17f-18; removal of the existing HFC-227EA fire suppression
system within the same space, design and installation of an extension of the office space as well
as two additional office spaces, installation of new piping, sprinkler heads and proprietary audible
alarms; and replacement of gauges on four risers.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (*IFB"} was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. One interested party downloaded
the solicitation package. One responsive bid was received and opened on January 14, 2022, as
follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid

Johnson Controls Fire Protection LF $124,500.00

This IFB is a re-bid. In November 2021, GCRTA received two non-responsive bids on the
previous solicitation. Ohio Revised Code Section 306.43(B) provides that in the case of a single
bid being received, the Authority may negotiate the price with the vendor. Negotiations failed to
achieve a price reduction from Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP. Johnson Controls Fire
Protection LP is the sole provider of the Authority’s existing proprietary alarm system and
equipment, making it difficult to compete this work. The agreed upon price of $124,500.00 is
$11,297.07, or 9.98%, greater than the Engineer's Estimate of $113,202.93,

A cost analysis has been performed and the bid of Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
hean mat. A 7% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Johnson Controls Fire
Protection, LF has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the
utilization of North Electric (Hispanic-owned) in the amount of $59 9837.00 or 48%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



Staff Summary & Comments 2022-24
Woodhill Garage Sprinkler System Expansion
Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Capital
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to, 100% Local funds for a total contract amount not to excead $124,500.00.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer may impact fire suppression at
Woodhill Garage, as it would delay or prevent the expansion of the sprinkler system.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Johnson Controls Fire
Protection LP be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

8.0  ATTACHMENTS: None.
Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the availability

of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

d — -
o o

< A
Cf%eraf Manager, Chief Executite’ Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-24

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2021-184 WITH JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE
PROTECTION LP FOR PROJECT 19,12 ~ WOODHILL GARAGE SPRINKLER
SYSTEM EXPANSION, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $124,500.00 (RTA CAPITAL FUND, ENGINEERING &
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, as recommended by the Authority's property insurance company, the
Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as required, under Project 19.12
-~ Woodhill Garage Sprinkler System Expansion; and

WHEREAS, the single bid of Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP, located at 17295
Foltz Industrial Parkway, Strongsville, Ohio 44149, was received on January 14, 2022 in an
arnount not to exceed $124,500.00; and

WHEREAS, the Authority proceeded to negotiate with the bidder, as permitted by Ohio
Revised Code Section 306.43(B), but did not achieve a price reduction; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Johnson
Controls Fire Protection LP {o be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP for Project 19.12 -
Woodhill Garage Sprinkler System Expansion, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP for
Project 19.12 — Woodhilt Garage Sprinkler System Expansion.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Capital Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, 100%
Local funds for a total contract amount not to exceed $124,500.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bending and insurance
requirements, and all applicable laws relating fo the contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regionat Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Johnson Controls Fire Protection LP will attempt to exceed the 7% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 8. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 29, 2022

President

Attest

Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong o,
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer Céﬁﬁz)

Date: March 24, 2022

Subject: Lease Renewal: PNC Bank, NA — Parking Area at Puritas Rail Station
Lease Renewal: 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC — Parking Area at Puritas

Rail Station

Staff seeks authorization to renew both leases. Additional information was circulated to all
Board members via separate email. These lease renewals require Board approval as both
tenants remain in continuous use of Authority property for more than three years. Both tenants
have remained in good standing with GCRTA since the inception of their tenancy. The lease
renewals reflect current market conditions.

PNC Barnk, a two year term with options for two renewal terms of one year each. Base rentis

$191,781.84 for the first year of the lease term, $197,535.24 for a 3% increase the second year

and rent of $203,461.32 for the first option year and $209 565.12 for a 3% increase the second
" aption year. ‘ ' ' ‘

2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, a two year renewal term at $12,000 per year with no change from the
currant rent,

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

B/JR



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
~01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
LEASE: LEASE AGREEMENT FOR LAND AT THE PURITAS - 2022-23
WEST 150™ STREET RAPID TRANSIT STATION, 4200 WEST Date:
150™ STREET, CLEVELAND, OH 44135 March 24, 2022
Initiator:

LESSEE: PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, A NATHONAL BANKING | Programming and

TERMS: TWO YEAR TERM WITH OPTIONS FOR TWO RENEWAL

ASSOCIATION Planning

TERMS OF ONE YEAR EACH. BASE RENT IS $191,781.84 FOR
THE FIRST YEAR OF THE LEASE TERM, $197,535.24 FOR THE
SECOND YEAR AND RENT OF $203,461.32 FOR THE FIRST
QFTION YEAR AND $209,565.12 FOR THE SECOND OPTION

YEAR
ACTION REQUEST:
® Approval [0 Review/Comment 1 Information Only [ Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution seeks approval for a renewal lease agreement with PNC

2.0

3.0

4.0

Bank, National Association, a national banking association, for lease of GCRTA property at the
Puritas — West 150" Rapid Transit Station for use as bank employee parking. The bank (or its
predecessor) has leased the GCRTA property located at 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland,
Ohio 44135 continuously since 2002. The GCRTA property is adjacent to the bank's data and
operations center located at 4100 West 150" Street.

The term is for two years with an option for renewal of two additional terms of one year each.

All insurance requirements, capital improvement and maintenance requirements are current.
Annual Rent for the full term of the proposed lease agreement is as follows:

First Year $191,781.84
Second Year $197,535.24
Option Year 1 $203,461.32
Option Year 2 $209,565.12

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority acquired the property from the City of
Cleveland in 1975 pursuant to the Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement. The proposed
leased premises have been under agreement with PNC Bank (or its predecessor) since 2002
for use as employee parking. As Lessee, PNC has complied with all terms and conditions of
previous lease agreements.

Staff is seeking approval for the lease renewal as Section 470.03 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority provides that the Board of
Trustees must approve leases permitting continuous use of Authority property for more than 3
years.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Dges not apply.



Staff Summary & Comments
PNC Bank Lease Agreement 2622-25
Page 2

50 POLICY IMPACT: The proposed lease renewal of this property is consistent with the Real
Estate Policies of the GCRTA.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The income from rent is $181,781.84 for the first year of the lease term
and is increased annually using a Consumer Price Index adjustment of 3.5% per year,

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: GCRTA can refuse to approve the lease agreement and seek a new tenant
for the property. Additional costs would be incurred for maintenance of this property until a
new tenant is secured.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the proposed renewal lease agreement for approval
to the Board of Trustees.

8.0 ATTACHMENT: Draft Lease Agreement

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

/ A

neral Manager, Chief Exe“&utf\?e Officer




LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL. TRANSIT AUTHORITY
AND
PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
FOR
PURITAS STATION
PAVED PARKING LOT

THIS AGREEMENT (“L.ease” or "Agreement”), is made and entered into at
Cleveland, Ohio, as of the day of , 2022, by and between the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a political subdivision of the State of
Ohio ("Lessor") whose mailing address is 1240 West 6th Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113,
and PNC Bank, National Association, a national banking association, (“Lessee",
whose mailing address is The Tower at PNC Plaza, 300 Fifth Avenue, Fittsburgh, PA
152220-2401.

WHEREAS, Lessor is the owner of certain realty consisting of a paved parking lot
located adjacent to the Puritas Rapid Transit Station in Cleveland, Ohio; and

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease such realty from Lessor, and Lessor desires
to lease such realty to Lessee.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained,
and further good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

L LEASED REALTY

Lessor leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Lessor, subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, the realty located adjacent to Lessor's Puritas Rapid
Transit Station parking lot at West 150" Street and designated on Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and made a part hereof (the “Parking Lot™).

Lessor's acquisition of the Parking Lot was originally funded, at least in part, with
federal transportation grants. The Federal Transit Administration (“*FTA") maintains an
interest in the Parking Lot, in accordance with the annual Master Grant Agreement
between Lessor and the FTA.

i TERM

This lease supersedes any prior agreements between the parties, including but
not limited to a Lease Agreement signed by the parties on December 1, 2002, a Lease



Agreement signed by the parties on June 3, 2008, an Amendment to Lease Agreement
signed by the parties on March 30, 2015 and a Lease Agreement signed by the parties
on May 1, 2015.

The initial term of this Lease is two (2) years, with an option of two (2) renewal
terms of one (1) year each. The initial term begins on the 1% day of May 2022, and
ends on the 30" day of April 2024. Each one (1) year renewal term will commence at
the conclusion of the prior term and each renewal term will begin May 15t and end April
30" of each subsequent year, the last of which will be April 30, 2026, |essor may
exercise the option by written offer to Lessee at least 60 days prior to the expiration of
the initial term. The renewal term will be governed by the same terms and conditions as
the initial term, except for any base rent adjustment as provided below. In no event will
this Lease extend beyond the renewal term.

Notwithstanding the above, either party may cancel this Lease at any time upon
ninety (90) days written notice to the other party.

1R RENT
A. Base Rent

The Base Rent for the first year of this Lease is One Hundred Ninety One
Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty One dollars and Eighty Four cents ($181,781.84).
Lessee must pay Lessor twelve (12) consecutive monthly rentai installments, as shown
in the table below, on or before the first day of each month during the initial year and
second year of this |.ease. Payment in subsequent years of the first term will be that
determined according to the Base Rent adjustment described in paragraph [V below.
The monthly Base Rent will be paid in advance at the address specified below for
l.essor, without prior demand and without any abatement, deduction or setoff. If the
commencement date or expiration date occurs on a day other than the first or last day
of a calendar month, then the monthly rent for the fractional month will be prorated on a
daily basis using 365 days as the standard one-year term for the Lease and each
subsequent renewal term. Rent will be adjusted at the beginning of the second year of
the initial term and the option year, if exercised, by an increase of three (3%) percent
over the previous year's rent, as set forth below. in no event will the yearly Base Rent
of the initial year or any subsequent years be reduced.

Term Base Rent Monthly
Installment
Initial Year — 05/01/2022 to 04/30/2023 $191,781.84 $15,981.82
Second Year — 05/01/2023 to 04/30/2024 $197,635.24 $16,461.27



Option 1 - 05/01/2024 to 04/30/2025 $203,461.32 $16,955.11
Option 2 - 05/01/2025 to 04/30/2026 $209,665.12 $17,463.76

B. Additional Rent

The realty is not presently subject to realty taxes, but if it becomes subject to
really taxes as the result of this Lease, Lessee shall pay such taxes as Additional Rent
for the term of this L.ease as they become due and payable. “Additional Rent” includes
all monetary obligations, other than Base Rent, owed by Lessee and arising out of this
l.ease, the occupancy of the realty, or the exercise of rights or privileges derived from
this Lease.

C. Late Payment

If Lessee fails to pay any Base Rent or Additional Rent on the date it is due and
payable, such unpaid amounts will be subject to a late payment charge equal to ten
percent (10%) of such amounts compounded daily. This late payment charge is
intended to compensate Lessor for its additional administrative costs resulting from
Lessee’s failure, and has been agreed upon by Lessor and Lessee, after negotiation, as
a reasonable estimate of the additional administrative costs, which will be incurred by
Lessor as a result of Lessee’s failure. The actual cost in each instance is extremely
difficult, if not impossible, to determine. The late payment charge will constitute
liquidated damages and will be paid to Lessor together with such unpaid amounts. The
payment of this late payment charge will not constitute a waiver by Lessor of any defauit
by Lessee under this Lease. |essee will pay legal interest to Lessor on past due
amounts from the date on which they are due until the date on which they are paid in fult
with interest.

IV. BASE RENT ADJUSTMENT

The Base Rent shall be adjusted at the beginning of the second year of this
Lease using a cumulative factor of three percent (3%). This new cumulative Base Rent
is to be paid starting at the beginning of each lease year that rent is adjusted. Rent
shall be adjusted in each option year using a cumulative factor of three percent (3%). In
no event will the yearly Base Rent of the initial year or any subsequent vears be
reduced.

V., USE; NON-ASSIGNABILITY

The Parking Lot will be used by Lessee as a parking lot for vehicles owned by
persons working at or visiting Lessee's business offices located next to the Parking Lot,
and will not be used for any other purpose without the prior written consent of Lessor.



Lessee's use of the Parking Lot shall not, for any reason, interfere with Lessor's use of
the RTA Parking or Lessor's adjacent property.

Lessee may not assign this Lease or sublet any part of the Parking Lot without
prior written consent of the Lessor. Any assignment or subletling of the Leased
property without the Lessor's written consent will be considered a breach of the terms of
this agreement, which could result in the immediate termination of this agreement and
damages due to the Lessor.

Lessee will recommend, encourage and facilitate its employees and visitors to
use Lessor's public transportation services through a variety of incentive programs
developed by Lessor.

VL.  CONDITIGN AND MAINTENANCE OF REALTY

LESSEE ACCEPTS THE PARKING LOT IN AN “AS /S” CONDITION
WITHOUT WARRANTIES BY LESSOR OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED.

Lessee agrees to maintain the Parking Lot in good repair at all times, and will
operate the Parking Lot in compliance with all applicable federal and state laws and
municipal ordinances. Lessee will keep and maintain the Parking Lot in a clean
condition; will not permit any noxious odors or hazards, or toxic or dangerous
substances to be placed on the Parking Lot by Lessee and its employees and agents.
Lessee shall indemnify and save Lessor harmless from and against any clean-up costs,
remedial or restoration work, claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs,
liabilities or losses, including limitation, diminution in value of the realty, damages for the
loss or restriction on use of any part of the realty, and attorneys', consultants’ and
experts’ fees, which arise during or after the term of this Lease to the extent caused by
any hazardous or toxic substances being generated or disposed of in or on, or brought
to, the realty by Lessee or Lessee's agents, officers, employees or invilees, Lessee will
return the Parking Lot to Lessor at the end of the term in the same condition as when
received, except for reasonable wear and tear. Lessee will maintain the landscaping,
lighting, snow plowing, drain cleaning, and other necessary maintenance upon the
Parking Lot. Lessee will maintain fencing upon the Parking Lot, which conforms in
appearance to the fencing presently located upon Lessor's adjacent realty. Lessee will
not make any changes to the Parking Lot without the prior written consent of Lessor.
Any changes, including fencing, will at the option of Lessor be removed or remain a part
of the Parking Lot at the end of the term of this Lease.

Anything above to the contrary notwithstanding, necessary maintenance upon



the Parking Lot by Lessee shall at a minimum include, but shall not be limited to:

in the first vear of the lease term (2022) and the first option year (2024)

ENTIRE PARKING LOT:

Step One: Clean and crack fill all cracks, pavement /curb joints with hot-
applied material meeting the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
specification D8690-07.

Step Two: Seal with two (2) coats of coal-tar sealant meeting Federal specification
RP-355E "forty-seven percent (47%) minimum solids content at application” with
sand added for traction.

Step Three: Restripe with alkyd yellow paint according to the Ohio Department of
Transportation (ODOT) 641.
All plans and materials must be submitted to Lessor for approval prior to commencement

of work. Lessor shall notify Lessee on schedule for performing work.

The provisions of this section VI shall survive the early termination or expiration of this
Lease.

V. ACCESS; SECURITY

A. Earess and Ingress

Lessor agrees {0 allow the Lessee the use of the Puritas Rapid Transit Station
access roadway for egress and ingress to the leased parking area. The cost of
maintenance of the access drive from the Puritas Rapid Transit Station access roadway
info the parking lot shalt be borne solely by the Lessee.

B. Right of Access

Nothing contained in this Lease Agreement shall be construed to restrict Lessor's
right to access the Parking Lot as necessary for transit-related purposes and for
maintenance or repairs of the Parking Lot.

Lessor reserves a right of access to the Parking Lot for its invitees' parking of
vehicles during weekdays, evenings and weekends, which right can be exercised by
Lessor giving at least seventy-two (72} hours advance notice to Lessee, Lessee’s fence
will have a gate on the south or east side of the Parking Lot for access by Lessor's



invitees and another gate on the north side of the Parking Lot for access by Lessee’s
invitees. Lessee will keep the south or east gate locked during periods when the
Parking Lot is being used by its invitees and the north gate locked during periods when
the Parking Lot is being used by Lessor's invitees. Each party wili post a sign near its
access gate informing users of the Parking Lot of the period during which its gate will be
locked.

C. Security

Lessor is responsible for security of the Parking Lot during the periods it has
given notice to Lessee that it is exercising its option of use, and Lessee is responsible
for security of the Parking Lot at all other times.

Vill. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
A, Indemnification

To the fullest extent permitted by law and to the full extent of Lessee’s
infentional, reckiess or negligent acts or omissions, Lessee shall, at its sole cost and
expense, indemnify, defend, satisfy all judgments, and hold harmless the Lessor and its
officials, agents, representatives, and employees from and against all claims, actions,
judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages, losses and expenses, including but not
limited to attorney's fees and worker's compensation benefits for Lessee's intentional,
reckless or negligent acts or omissions, or the acts or omissions of any person or
contracted entity directly or indirectly employed or contracted by Lessee incurred in
connection with or arising from the performance of this Lease Agreement, including but
not limited 0. (a) the use or occupancy of the Parking Lot by Lessee or any person
claiming under Lessee; (b) any activity, work, or thing done, or permitted or suffered by
L.essee in or about the Parking Lot; (¢) any acts, omissions, or negligence of Lessee or
any person claiming under Lessee, or the, agents, employees invitees or visitors of
Lessee or any such person; (d) any breach, vialation, or nonperformance by Lessee or
any person claiming under Lessee of any term, covenant, or provision of this Lease or
any law, ordinance, or governmental requirement of any kind. If any action or
proceeding is brought against Lessor, its employees, or agents because of any such
claim, Lessee, upon notice from Lessor, will defend the claim at Lessee’s expense with
counsel reasonably satisfactory to Lessor.

in the event of negligence or infentional acts or omissions by more than one
entity, responsibility for such negligence or intentional acts or omissions will be
allocated in accordance with the proportionate share of such entity(ies) negligence or
intentional acts or omissions. Nothing herein shall be construed as making Lessee
liable for any claims, actions, judgments, costs, penaliies, liabilities, damages or losses
and expenses caused by the sole negligence and/or misconduct of Lessor.



Lessor will hold harmless Lessee, its agents, and employees from any and all
demands, claims, causes of action, fines, penalties, damages, losses, liabilities,
judgments, and expenses incurred by Lessor in connection with or arising from: (a)
any acts, omissions, or negligence of Lessor during periods of actual use of the Parking
Lot; and (b} any breach, violation, or nonperformance by Lessor of any term, covenant,
or provision of this Lease or any law, ordinance, or governmental requirement of any
kind.

B. Insurance

Lessee shall obtain and maintain for the life of this contract the following minimum
insurance coverage. Such insurance shall protect the Lessee from claims which may
arise out of or result from the Lessee’s operations under the Contract and for which the
Lessee may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Lessee or by a Sub-
lessee or by anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them, or by anyone for
whose acts any of them may be liable. Further, Lessee agrees to utilize the insurance
requirements contained in Exhibit “B” with regard to any contractors that perform any of
the maintenance described elsewhere in this Lease.

Approval by the Lessor; Approval of the insurance by the Lessor shall not relieve or
decrease the liability of the L.essee hereunder. Itis to be understood that the Lessor does
not in any way represent that the insurance or the limits of insurance specified herein are
sufficient or adequate fo protect the Lessee's interests or liabilities. -

In the event the Lessee neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance required under
the contract documents, or as such insurance is canceiled for any reason, the Lessor
shall have right but not the duty to procure the same, and costs thereof shall be deducted
from monies then due or thereafter {o become due to the Lessee.

Lessor reserves the right to request a copy of all policies and endorsements prescribed
herein.

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance in the amount of $5,000,000
combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or property damage
and with a $5,000,000 annual aggregate. Policy to include:;

« Contractual liability coverage insuring the "hold harmless” provision.

« Lessor will accept any combination of primary CGL and Excess or Umbrella
policies to meet the minimum coverage requirements above.

¢ Products / Completed Operations liability insurance: This insurance must be
maintained for a period of not less than 5 years from the date of final payment.



2. Business Automobile Liability (BAL) Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00
combined single limit each accident for bodily injury and/or property damage. Said
policy shall apply to all owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in
connection with the work.

3. Statutory Workers' Compensation Coverage in compliance with all applicable
state workers' compensation laws to cover all employees furnishing labor under
the terms of this contract and under the controt of the Lessee. Employers’ Liability
coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per accident / $1,000,000 per employee for
disease will also be included, either under the Workers’ Compensation policy or
under the Commercial General Liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under a.
above. in Ohio, a copy of a certificate of premium payment from the Industrial
commission and Bureau of Workers Compensation, or a copy of the Certificate of
Employer's Right to Pay Compensation Directly.

4. General Requirements: The Lessee shall not commence work herein until it has
obtained the required insurance and has received written approval of such
insurance by the Lessor. Lessee shall furnish evidence of such insurance in
the form of a certificate (Accord or similar form).

Lessor will accept any combination of primary CGL along with Excess or Umbreila
policies, as well as primary BAL along with Excess or Umbrella, policies to meet
the minimum coverage requirements contained herein.

The certificate shall provide the following:

a. The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. If any insurance
specified above is written on an "Claims Made” (rather than an “occurrence”
hasis), then, in addition, to the coverage requirements stated herain, Lessee
shall:

« Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such date shall
be before the date of the Lessee or any work beginning under the contract.

* Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3)
years following project completion, including the requirement of adding al}
additional insureds; and

o If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with another
claims-made policy form with a Refroactive Date prior to the contract
effective date, Lessee shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a
minimum of three (3) years after completion of the work.

b. Name the Lessor as an additional insured for all liability coverage under a.
and b. above for claims arising out of operations in conjunction with the
contract

¢c. Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Lessor.



o

Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects any
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Lessor.

e. Contain a specific reference to the subject contract.

f.

a.

Specify all deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

In the event the insurance should be changed or cancelied, such change or
cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after the Lessor has received
written notice of such change or cancellation from the Lessee. Such notice
shall be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Lessor's
Director of Procurement.

An insurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A. M. Best
Company will not be considered acceptable. Al certificates are subject to
acceptance by the Lessor. The Lessor shall be entitled to receive a full
copy of the insurance policy(ies) upon request and reserves the right to
review financial statements and approve any deductibles or SIR.

IX. GOVERNING LAW; NOTICES

This Agreement is governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of Ohio. Any notice concerning this Agreement must be in writing and
will be deemed sufficiently given when sent by certified or registered mail if sent to the
respective address of each party set forth below:

If to Lessor: Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

Attention: Property Manager
1240 West 6% Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1331

if to Lessee; PNC Bank, National Association

C/o PNC Realty Services

The Tower at PNC Plaza - 22nd Floor
300 Fifth Avenue

Pittsburgh, PA 15222.2401
PT-PTWR-22-1

Attn: Transaction Manager

COPY TO:

PNC Bank, National Association
Legal Division

1600 Market Street — 8th Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19103



Attn: Michael G. Balent, Esq., Chief Counsel
Additionally, please direct all rent related correspondence to:

PNC Bank, National Association

Cl/o PNC Reaity Services

The Tower at PNC Plaza - 22™ Floor
Attn: Rent Payment Coordinator

300 Fifth Avenue

Pittsburgh, PA 15222-2401

Email - RSRentPaymentswesi@one com

X. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and any
prior understanding or representation of any kind before the date of this Agreement will
not be binding upon either party, except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement.
Any modification of this Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either party in
connection with this Agreement will be binding only if evidenced in writing, signed by
each party.

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW]

10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party to this Agreement has executed it at Cleveland,
Ohio, on the dates indicated below,

Lessor: GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1240 West 6t Street
Cieveland, Ohio 44113-1331

By:
india L.. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

Date: L2022

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

Lessee: PNC Bank, National Association

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Date: , 2022

il



STATE OF OHIO )
} S8.
CUYAHOGA COUNTY )

BEFORE ME, a notary public in and for said County and State, came the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a political subdivision of the State
of Ohio, by India L. Birdsong, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, who
acknowledged that she did execute the foregoing instrument on behalf of said
Authority; that the same is her free act and deed as such officer; and the free act
and deed of the Authority.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal
at Cleveland, Ohio, this day of , 2022,

NOTARY PUBLIC

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA )85

COUNTY OF ALLEGHENY }
On the day of 2022, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared , who acknowledged himselffherself to be the Vice

President of PNC Bank, National Association, the national banking association named in
the foregoing instrument and being personally known to me or proved to me on the basis
of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in his/her capacity

as Vice President on behalf of the national banking association.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

12



EXHIBIT “B"

Lessee shall require its contractor to purchase and maintain from the date of
commencement of the work until the date such work is completed the following
minimum insurance coverages. Such insurance shall protect Lessee from claims which
may arise out of or result from the Lessee's operations in conjunction with this Lease
and for which the Lessee may be legally liable, whether such operations be by Lessee
or by a contractor or by anyone employed directly or indirectly by either of them, or by
anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable.

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance in the amount of $5,000,000
combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or property damage
and with a $5,000,000 annual aggregate. Policy to include:

» Contractual liability coverage insuring the “hold harmless” provision,

+ Lessor will accept any combination of primary CGL and Excess or Umbrella
policies to meet the minimum coverage requirements above.

» Products / Completed Operations liability insurance: This insurance must be
maintained for a period of not less than 5 years from the date of final payment.

2. Business Automobile Liability (BAL) Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00
combined single limit each accident for bodily injury and/or property damage. Said
policy shall apply to all owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in
connection with the work.

3. Statutory Workers’ Compensation Coverage in compliance with alt applicable
state workers' compensation laws to cover all employees furnishing labor under
the terms of this contract and under the control of the Lessee. Employers’ Liability
coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per accident / $1,000,000 per employee for
disease will also be included, either under the Workers’ Compensation policy or
under the Commercial General Liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under a.
above. In Ohio, a copy of a certificate of premium payment from the Industrial
commission and Bureau of Workers Compensation, or a copy of the Certificate of
Employer's Right to Pay Compensation Directly.

4. General Requirements. The Lessee shall not commence work herein until it has
obtained the required insurance and has received written approval of such
insurance by the Lessor. Lessee shall furnish evidence of such insurance in
the form of a certificate (Accord or similar form).

Lessor will accept any combination of primary CGL along with Excess or Umbrella

policies, as well as primary BAL along with Excess or Umbrella, policies to meet
the minimum coverage reqguirements contained herein.

13



The certificate shall provide the foliowing:

a.

a e

The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. [f any insurance
specified above is written on an "Claims Made" (rather than an “occurrence”
hasis), then, in addition, {o the coverage requirements stated herein, Lessee
shall:

« Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such date
shall be before the date of the Lessee or any work beginning under the
contract.

« Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3)
years following project completion, including the requirement of adding all
additional insureds; and

« [f insurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with another
claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract
effective date, Lessee shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a
minimum of three (3) years after completion of the work.

Name the Lessor as an additional insured for alt liakility coverage under a.

and b. above for claims arising out of operations in conjunction with the

contract

Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Lessor.

Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects any

insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Lessor.

Contain a specific reference to the subject contract.

Specify ali deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

. In the event the insurance should be changed or cancelied, such change or

cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after the Lessor has received
written notice of such change or cancellation from the Lessee. Such notice
shall be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Lessor's
Director of Procurement.

An insurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A. M. Best
Company will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are subject to
acceptance by the Lessor. The Lessor shall be entitled to receive a full
copy of the insurance policy(ies) upon request and reserves the right fo
review financial statements and approve any deductibles or SIR.

5. In the event | essee neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance
required above, or If such insurance is canceled for any reason, Lessor shall
have the right but not the duty to procure the same, and cost thereof shall be
considered Additional Rent under Section Il1.B of the Agreement,

14



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-25

AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSQCIATION FOR PROPERTY
AT THE PURITAS - WEST 150™ STREET RAPID TRANSIT STATION,
LOCATED AT 4200 WEST 150™ STREET, CLEVELAND, OHIO 44135, FOR A
RENEWAL TERM OF TWQ YEARS WITH OPTIONS FOR TWO RENEWAL
TERMS OF ONE YEAR EACH

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) is the owner
of record of land and facilities located at 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, which
is & portion of the property known as the Puritas-West 150" Street Rapid Transit Station (the
“Property”™); and

WHEREAS, the Property was acguired by the Authority on September 5, 1975 for the
operation of the regional transit system; and

WHEREAS, a portion of the Property has been leased to PNC Bank, National
Association, or its predecessor bank, since December 1, 2002 for use as bank employse
parking; and

WHEREAS, Section 470.03 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority provides that a lease permitting the continuous use of
Authority property for more than three years must be approved by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, Federal Transit Administration ("FTA") Circular 5010.1E authorizes the
Authority to renew existing leases at rates and conditions based on current fair market values
for comparable properties and the Authority's staff has defermined the new lease terms and
conditions to be representative of fair market values for comparable properties in northeast
Chio; and

WHEREAS, PNC Bank, National Association intends {o operate and maintain the
Property, agrees to perform all necessary capital improvements and agrees to maintain the
Property in a clean, safe and altractive condition, which represents additionat compensation for
lease of the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to offer PNC Bank, National Association a |lease
renewal for a term of two years at $191,781.84 for the first year of the lease term and
$197,5635.24 for the second year of the lease term and two extension options at $203,461.32 for
the first option year and $209,565.12 for the second option year; and

WHEREAS, PNC Bank, National Association has remained a tenant in good standing
with the Authority for the entire term of previous lease agreements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute a lease agreement with PNC Bank, National Assaciation for a renewal term of two
years and to execute two options of one year each at $191,781.84 for the first year of the lease
term and $197,535.24 for the second year of the lease term and $203,461.32 for the first option
year and $209,565.12 for the second option year on a portion of the property located at the



Resolution Na. 2022-25
Page 2

Puritas-West 150" Street Rapid Transit Station, 4200 West 150" Street, Clevetand, Ohio 44135
and further known as Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 027-19-002 (the "Property”).

Section 2. That the rent of $191,781.84 for the first year, and $197,535.24 for the
second year, and $203,461.32 for the first option year, and $209,565.12 for the second option
year along with PNC Bank, Naticnal Association's agreement to perform all necessary capital
improvements and to maintain the Property in a clean, safe and attractive condition represents
fair compensation for the lease of Property, as determined by a survey of comparable properties
in northeast Chio as verified by the Authority’s staff.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted. March 29, 2022

Fresident

Attest:

Secretary Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TTLE/DESCRIPTION:; Resolution No.:
LEASE; LEASE AGREEMENT FOR LAND ADVACENT TO THE 2022-26
PURITAS-WEST 150™ STREET RAPID TRANSIT STATION, Date:
TH !
4200 WEST 150™ STREET, CLEVELAND, QOH 44135 March 24, 2022
LESSEE: 2 BIRDS SHUTTLE AND DETAIL, LLC, AN OHIO LIMITED | Initiator:
LIABILITY COMPANY Programming and
Planning

TERMS: TWO YEAR RENEWAL TERM AT $12,000 PER YEAR

ACTION REQUEST:
# Approval [ Review/Comment 0 Information Only I Qther

1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution seeks approval for a renewal lease agreement with 2
Birds Shuttle and Detait LLC, an Ohio limited liabiity company, for the operation of an airport
shuttle service and auto detail center. The property is a surplus parking area at the Puritas-W
1501 Rapid Transit Station at 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland, OH 44135, The renewal
term is for two years with no extension option., GCRTA reserves the right to cancel the lease
at any time and for any reason.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority acquired this property in 1875 as part of the
Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement creating GCRTA. The portion of the property
proposed for lease renewal was a surplus parking area not used for GCRTA operations. The
tenant has occupied the property since March of 2020 and has satisfactorily improved, and
maintained the property. All insurance requirements and compliance with the terms and
conditions of the current lease agreement have been met. The tenant remainad in good
standing with GCRTA throughout the terrn of the initial lease agreement,

Staff is offering and seeking approval of this lease renewal bacause Section 470.03 of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority provides
that the Board of Trustees must approve any lease permitting continuous use of Authority
property for more than 3 years.,

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

4.0 DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: The initial lease agreement and renewal are
proactive efforts to promote and advance the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program
goals of GCRTA as the Lessee is a qualified DBE.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: The proposed lease renewal is consistent with the Real Estate Policies of
the GCRTA.

8.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The income from rent of $12,000.00 per year reduces the operating
and maintenance costs at the Puritas Road-West 150" Street Rapid Station.

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: The GCRTA can refuse to renew the lease agreement and seek a new
tenant for the property or close this amenity and incur additional costs for maintaining the
property.



Staff Summary & Comments 2022-26
2 Birds Shuttle
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the proposed renewal lease agreement for approval
to the Board of Trustees.

9.0 ATTACHMENT. Draft Lease Agreement.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legat form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

j@@zﬁfjﬁg

eneral Manager, Chief Ex@_ﬂj@fﬂc&r




LEASE BETWEE

THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AND

2 BIRDS SHUTTLE AND DETAIL LLC

This Lease is made and entered into as of this day of March, 2022 ("Effective

Date"), by and between the 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail LLC, an Ohio limited liability company
whose principal business office is located at 19540 Puritas Avenue, Cleveland, OH 44135
{"Lessee”} and the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a political subdivision
organized under Ohio Revised Code Chapter 306, whose principal business office is located at
1240 West 6" Street, Cleveland, Ohio, 44113 (“Lessor").

1.

Lessor does hereby lease fo Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor the land adjacent
to the Puritas — West 150th Rapid Transit Station, in the City of Cleveland, Cuyahoga County,
Ohio, and identified on the document attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “A”
("Premises”).

The term of the Lease shall be for a period of two (2) years, beginning on March 1, 2022 (the
"Commencement Date") and terminating on February 29, 2024. Notwithstanding anything
contained herein, Lessor reserves the right to cancel the Lease at any time and for any reason,

Lessee shall pay to Lessor the monthly rent stated in Exhibit “B* attached hereto and made
part hereof in equal consecutive monthly installmeants on or before the first day of each month
during the term of this Lease (the "Base Rent").

The Base Rent is to be adjusted in accordance with Exhibit “B” attached.

If the Lessee fails to pay any Base Rent on the date it is due and payable, such unpaid amount
shall be subject {0 a late payment charge of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00).

Lessee may use and occupy the land described in Exhibit *A" solely for operating a parking,
airponrt shuttle and auto detail center on a for profit basis. The parking, and airport shuttle and
auto detail center must be accessible to the public. Lessor and Lessee agree this Lease does
not create a permanent use but that the parking, airport shuttle and auto detail center is a
ternporary use of the land until such time as Lessor has another use for the land. The land
described in Exhibit “A” shall not be used for any purpose other than permitted herein without
the express written consent of the Lessor.

The parking, shuttle and auto detail center shall be fenced around the perimeter with multiple
secured gated entrances. Landscaping, site lighting and signage approved by the Lessor and
the City of Cleveland may be installed. The fence, all gates, and all improvements shall be
maintained in a good state of repair at all times,

Page 1 of6



8.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Lessor reserves the right to use (or grant to other parties the right to use) the air rights above
the Premises and Lessee will have no right title or interest in the air rights above the Premises.

Within fifteen {(15) days from the Commencement Date of this Lease, Lessee shall prepare
and deliver to Lessor detailed plans and specifications of the improvements {o the Premises
to be constructed by Lessee in compliance with Exhibit “C" attached hereto and made a part
hereof.  Within fifteen (15) days following Lessor's receipt of Lessee's plans and
specifications, Lessor shall notify Lessee whether Lessee's plans and specifications are
acceptable to Lessor. If Lessee's plans and specifications are not acceptable to Lessor,
Lessor will advise Lessee of the required modifications to Lessee's plans and specifications.
Lessee shall modify and deliver to Lessor its revised plans and specifications within five (5)
days from receipt of Lessor's required modifications. Lessor and Lessee will continue this
process until Lessor has approved Lessee’s plans and specifications ("Lessea's Work").
Withir ten (10) days from receipt of Lessor's approval of Lessee's plans and specifications,
Lessee will apply for any and alt permits and other governmental approvals necessary to
perform Lessee’s Work and Lessee will diligently pursue such application(s) until approved.
Lessee shall not modify LLessee's plans and specifications approved by Lessor without
Lessor's prior written consent. Upon Lessor's delivery of the Premises, and provided Lessor
has approved Lessee's plans and specifications, or upon Lessor's approval of Lessee’s plans
and specifications, whichever is later, Lessee will commence construction of Lessee's Work
in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by Lessor.  |If Lessee has not
complied with each of the foregoing conditions, Lessor may, in its sole and absolute discretion,
reasonably control Lessee's access to the Premises to the extent Lessor deems necessary
without such actions affecting the term of this Lease as set forth in paragraph 2 of this Lease.
Lessee will complete construction of Lessee's Work prior to occupancy or use by the public.
Lessee must receive Lessor’s consent and the approval of the City of Cieveland to its signage
plans and specifications prior to installation of Lessee's signage upon the Premises. Lessee
shall perform all work associatad with the granting of this Lease at its sole cost and expense.

Lessee shall be responsible for the maintenance of the parking, airport shuttle and auto detail
center constructaed on the Premises and shall maintain said Premises in a clean, safe, and
attractive condition. Lessee shall keep and maintain the Premises and any fixtures, facilities,
or equipment therein, in good condition and repair. Lessee shall be responsible for cleaning,
repairing and remediating all portions of the Premises. Lessee shall be responsible for all
security required to operate this business on the Premises.

Neither the Premises nor any part thereof shall be sublet nor shall this Lease be assigned
without the express consent, in writing, of the Lessor,

The relationship between the parties hereto is wholly that of Lessor and Lessee, and is not
and never shall be deemed to be a partnership or joint venture.

To the fullast extent permitied by faw and to the full extent of Lessee's intentional, reckless or
negligent acts or omissions, the Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expense, indemnify, defend,
satisfy all judgments, and hold harmless Lessor and its officials, agents, representatives, and
employees from and against all claims, actions, judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities,
damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees and worker's

Page 2 of 6



compensation benefits, for Lessee's breaches of this Lease, or intentional, reckless or
negligent acts or omissions arising out of or resulting from the subject matter of this Lease, or
the acts or omissions of any person or contracted entity directly or indirectly employed or
contracted by Lessee.

Nothing herein shall be construed as making Lessee liable for any claims, actions, judgments,
costs, penalties, liabilities, damages or losses and expenses caused by the sole negligence
and/or misconduct of Lessor. Lessee accepts the land described in Exhibit “A" in an "AS IS
and WHERE 15" condition without warranty by Lessor of any kind or nature, express or
implied. Lessor shall not be liable (i) for any damage to Lessee's property located on the
Premises, nor (i) for any condition of the Premises whatsoever.

To the extent that any portion of this provision is found to be in violation of any applicable law,
said portion(s) of this provision are stricken but all remaining portions of this provision shall
remain in full force and effect.

14, Insurance
a. The Lessee shall obtain and maintain for the term of this Lease the following minimum
insurance coverages. Such insurance shall protect the Lesses from claims which may
arise out of or result from the Lessee’s operations under this Lease and for which the
Lessee may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Lessee or by a
subcontractor or by anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them, or by anyone
for whose acts any of them may be liable.

Approval by the Lessor: Approval of the insurance by the Lessor shall not relieve or
decrease the liability of the L essee hereunder and shall not affect the obligations of Lessee
pursuant to paragraph 13 of this Lease. Lessor does not in any way represent that the
insurance or the limits of insurance specified herein are sufficient or adequate to protect
the Lessee’s interasts or liabilities.

In the event the Lessee neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance required herein,
or if such insurance is cancelled for any reason, the Lessor shall have the right but not the
duty to procure the same at Lessee’s cost.

lL.essor reserves the right to request a copy of all policies and endorsements prescribad
herein.

At its sole expense, Lessee shall obtain and maintain:

i. Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000
combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or property damage and
with a $1,000,000 annual aggregate,

ii. Business Automobile Liahility (BAL) Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000
combined single limit each accident for bodily injury and/or property damage. Said
policy shall apply to all owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in
connection with Lessee’s Work and use that is the subject of this Lease.

iil.  Statutory Workers’ Compensation Coverage in compliance with all applicable state
workers' compensation laws to cover all employees furnighing labor under the terms
of this Lease and under the confrol of the Lessee. Employers’ Liability coverage in the

Page 3 0f6



amount of $1,000,000 per accident / $1,000,000 per employee for disease will also be
included, either under the Workers' Compensation policy or under the Commercial
General Liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under subpart i above. In Ohio, a copy
of a certificate of premium payment from the Industrial Commission and Bureau of
Woarkers Compensation, or a copy of the Cerlificate of Employer's Right to Pay
Compensation Directly shall be sufficient proof of the coverages required by this
subpart iii,

b. General Requirements:

The Lessee shall not have access to the Premises until it has obtained the required
insurance and has received written approval of such insurance by the Lessor. Lessee
shall furnish evidence of such insurance in the form of a certificate (Accord or
similar form).

i

The certificate shall provide the following:

The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. If any insurance specified
above is written on a “Claims Made" (rather than an “cccurrence” basis), then in
addition to the coverage requirements stated herein, Lessee shalk:

(a) Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such date shall
be before the Effective Date of this Lease or any work beginning under this
Lease.

(b) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years
following the termination of this Lease, including the requirement of adding ali
additional insureds: and

{¢) Ifinsurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the Effective Date of this
lease, Lessee shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of
three (3) years after completion of the work.

Name the Lessor as an additiona!l insured for all CGL, and BAL liability coverage
for claims arising out of operations in conjunction with this Lease

Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Lessor.

Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects any
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Lessor.

Contain a specific reference to this |ease.
Specify all deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

In the event the insurance should be changed or cancelled, such change or
cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after the Lessor has received
written notice of such change or cancellation from the LLessee. Such notice shall
be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Lessor's Property
Manager.

Aninsurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A. M. Best Company
will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are subject to acceptance by the
Lessor, The lLessor shall be entitled to receive a full copy of the insurance

Page 4 of 6



15

16,

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

policy(ies) upon request and reserves the right to review financial statements and
approve any deductibles or SIR.

iii. Lessor will accept any combination of primary CGL along with Excess or Umbrella
policies, as well as primary BAL along with Excess or Umbrelia palicies, to meet the
minimum coverage requirements contained herein.

Lessee agrees that all construction and maintenance activities permitied or required
hereunder will be performed by its own employees or a contractor of Lessee, If any such
activities are to be performed by other than employees of Lessee, then Lessee will so advise
l.essor and Lessee’s contractor(s) will have to abtain and maintain insurance in the amounts
specified above. Lessor shall be an additional named insured on such policies and evidence
of said coverage must be presented to the Lessor before any work is permitied to begin.

This L.ease shail be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Ohio. Lessee shall maintain and operate the 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail Center and
the Premises in accordance with all laws of the State of Ohio and local ordinances.

Any notice concerning this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed sufficiently given
when sent by certified or registered mail to the respective address of each party as set forth
herein.

Address of Notice:

lLessor:  Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 6" Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
Attn; Property Manager

Lessee: 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail Center, LLC
19540 Puritas Ave., Cleveland, Ohio 44135
Aitn: Anthony Russell

Lessee shall remove any and all fencing, fixtures, improvements and personal property from
the Premises upon receipt of notice from Lessor or termination or cancellation of this Lease
and return the Premises to its original condition or to a condition satisfactory to Lessor in its
sofe discretion.

This L.ease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and any prior understanding
or representation of any kind prior to the date of this Lease shall not be bhinding upon either
party, except to the extent it is incorporated into this Lease. Any modification of this Lease
will be binding only if evidenced in writing and signed by both parties.

Each Exhibit referenced in, and attached to, this Lease is incorporated in this Lease by such
reference as if fully rewritten in hersin.

surrender and Holding Over, Lessee shall deliver up and surrender to Lessor possession of
the Premises upon the expiration of the term of this Lease or earlier termination for any
reason. If Lessee remains in possession of the Premizses after the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, Lessee shall be a month-to-month tenant and be bound by the terms

Page 5 of 6



and provisions of this Lease. Lessee shall (with no additional notice required by Lessor) pay
to Landiord monthly rent in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00)
per month, in advance, on the first day of each calendar month for any period during which
Lessee shall hold the Premises after the Lease term shall expire or may have terminated.
Monthly rent and Additional Rent (as hereinafter defined) shall be prorated on a per diem
basis (based upon a thirty (30) day calendar month} for any partial month Lessee occupies
the Premises during such holdover period.

22. Additional Rent. Any amounts to be paid by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to the provisions of
this Lease or at law, whether such payments are periodic or recurring, shall be deemed to be
"Additional Rent" and otherwise subject to all provisions of this Lease and of law as to the
default in the payment of rent.

23. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
when 50 executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts together
shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, each party to this Lease has caused it to be executed by an
individual authorized to enter into said Lease as of the date specified herein.

LESSOR: Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority
1240 West 6! Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1331

By:

India L. Birdsong
General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to Legal Form:

Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

LESSEE: 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC
19540 Puritas Ave.
Cleveland, Ohio 44135

By:

Anthany Russell, Manager

Page 6of 6



EXHIBIT “A”

(THE PREMISES)




Term

YEAR 1.

YEAR 2:

EXHIBIT “8”

RENT PAYMENT

Monthly Base Rent

$1,000.00/Month

$1,000.00/Menth

Tota! Rent

$12,000.00

$12,000.00



TENANT'S WORK

Neither Lessor, nor any, officers, employees, agents, or representatives of Lessor (all of the
foregoing, collectively, the "Lessor Parties”) shall be liable for any injury, damage or loss of
any nature whatsoever to person or property arising out of the performance and construction
of the Lessee's improvements. Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify, protect, defend and hold
harmiess the Lessor Parties from and against any and all claims, damages, liability, loss, cost
and expense related to or arising out of the performance and construction of the Lessee's
improvements by Lessee or any other party working on Lessee's behalf. The terms and
conditions of this Section 1 shall survive the termination of the Lease.

. All work performed in connection with the Lessee's improvements, shall be performed in a
ien-free, good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable government ordinances, codes, regulations and faws. In the event any mechanics’
or materialman's lien is filed against the Premises or any other real property of Lessor in
connection with the Lessee's improvements or on behalf of Lessee, then Lessee shall, within
seven (7) days after notice of filing, cause the same to be discharged of record.

Lessee shail neither do nor suffer anything to be done or kept in or about the Premises which
contravenes Lessor's insurance policies,

L.essee shall promptly clean up and maintain all rubbish, garbage and waste generated from
the Lessee's improvements and use of the Premises and shall permit no refuse generated
from Lessee's improvements and use of the Premises to accumulate around the exterior of
the Premises.

Lessee shall comply with all reasonable rules and regulations which Lessor may from time to
time establish for the use and care of the Premises.

Lessee shall not permit or cause the presence of Mazardous Materials in, on or under the
premises. Lessee shall defend, protect, indemnify and hold the Lessor Parties harmless from
and against any and all claims, causes of action, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses,
including without limit, attorney fees, arising because of any alleged personal injury, property
damage, death, nuisance, loss of business or otherwise, by Lessor, any Lessor Party, or from
and against any governmental act or enforcement, arising from or in any way connected with
conditions existing or claimed to exist with respect to Hazardous Materials {(as hereinafter
defined) within the Premises or any adjacent property, which are the result of Lessee's use or
occupancy of the Premises, or performance of the Lessee's improvements. As used herein
the term "Hazardous Materials” shall be defined as any hazardous substance, contaminant,
pollutant or hazardous release (as such terms are defined in any federal, state or local law,
rule, regulation or ordinance, including without, limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended) and other said wastes. In
the event Lessee shall cause or permit the presence of Hazardous Materials in, on, around,
or under the Premises, Lessee shall promptly, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, take any
and all action necessary (as required by appropriate government authority or otherwise) to
return the areas affected theraby to the condition existing prior to the presence of any such
Hazardous materials thereon, subject to Lessor's prior written consent. This Section 6 shall
survive termination of the Lease.



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-26

AUTHORIZING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 2 BIRDS SHUTTL.E AND
DETAIL, LLC FOR PROPERTY AT THE PURITAS-WEST 150™ STREET
RAPID TRANSIT STATION LOCATED AT 4200 WEST 150™ STREET,
CLEVELAND, OHIO 44135, FOR A RENEWAL TERM OF TWO YEARS AT
$12,000.00 PER YEAR

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) is the owner
of record of the land and facility located at 4200 West 1501 Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135,
which is a portion of the property known as the Puritas-Weat 150" Street Rapid Transit Station
(the "Property™); and

WHEREAS, the Property was acquired by the Authority on September 5, 1975 as
authorized by the Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement of 1975; and

WHEREAS, the Property has been leased to 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC, an Ohio
limited liability company, for the past two years for the operation of an airport shuttle service and
auto detait center; and

WHEREAS, Section 470.03 of the Cadified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority provides that leases permitting continuous use of Authority
property for more than 3 years must be approved by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the Authority's staff has determined the new lease terms and conditions to
be representative of fair market value for comparable properties and compliant with the program
goals of the Authority's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program; and

WHEREAS, the amenity was determined to be an appropriate use for the site; and

WHEREAS, 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC intends to continue to operate and maintain
the property in a clean, safe and attractive condition, which represents additional compensation
for leasing the Property; and

WHEREAS, 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC has remained a tenant in good standing
throughout the term of the initial lease agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to offer 2 Birds Shuttle and Detall, LLC a lease
renewal for the Property for a term of two years at $12,000.00 per year and the Authority
reserves the right to cancel the lease agreement at any time and for any reason.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute a lease agreement with 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC for a renewal term of two years
at $12,000.00 per annum for a portion of the property located at the Puritas-West 150" Street
Rapid Transit Station, 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135 and further known as
Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 027-19-002 (the “Property”).



Resolution No, 2022-26
Page 2

Section 2. That the rent of $12,000.00 per year along with 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail,
LLC’s agreement to perform all necessary capital improvements and to maintain the property in
a clean, safe and attractive condition represents fair compensation for feasing the Property, as
determined by survey of comparable properties in northeast Ohio and verified by the Authority's

staff.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: March 29, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



o 2 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
a STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2022.27
APPROVING THE 2022 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN Date:

March 24, 2022

{nitiator:
internal Audit

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval (1 Review/Comment 11 Information Only [} Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will approve the 2022 Internal Audit Plan, as required by
Article |X, Section 5 of the Bylaws of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Bylaws") and Sections 262.07(a) and (d) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Code").

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Standard 2010, Planning, of the Institute of Internal
Auditors’ ("llA") International Professional Practice Framework provides that “the chief
audit executive must establish a risk-based plan to determine the priorities of the internal
audit activity, consistent with the organization's goals.” The lIA's interpretation of that
standard states that "to develop the risk-based plan, the chief audit executive consults
with senior management and the board and obtains an understanding of the
organization's strategies, key business objectives, associated risks, and risk management
processes. The chief audit executive must review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in
response to changes in the organization's business, risks, operations, programs, systems,
and controls.”

The internal audit plan is intended to ensure that internal audit coverage adequately
examines areas with the greatest exposure to the key risks that could affect the
Authority's ability to achieve its objectives. The preparation of the plan consists of a five-
step process, including the identification of audit areas, establishment of risk based audit
priorities, aliocation of resources, development of audit scheduled, and formulation of the
annual plan. Per the professional standards, Internal Audit considered feedback from the
Board of Trustees, the General Manager, CEQO, executive management and others.

After Internal Audit met with the General Manager, CEQ and each member of the
executive management team to review their business objectives and organizational goals,
internal Audit aligned the plan with the Authority's Strategic Plan and Success Outcomes.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will result in the Authority having a 2022
Internal Audit Plan approved in accordance with the Authority's Bylaws, Code and the
Planning standard of the lIA.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.



Staff Summary And Comments 2022.27
2022 Internal Audit Plan
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting the resolution would leave the Authority without an
approved Internal Audit Plan for 2022,

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: On March 8, 2022 the Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate
Committee reviewed and discussed the 2022 Internal Audit Plan and referred it to the full
Board, it is recommended that the resolution be adopted, approving the 2022 Internal
Audit Plan.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requirements.

a} Manager Chief Exeo’mwa’ Officer



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-27
APFROVING THE 2022 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has been granted the power and authority, pursuant
to Chapter 306 of the Ohio Revised Code, to manage and conduct the affairs of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authority”); and

WHEREAS, Article 1X, Section 5 of the Authority's Bylaws provides that the Board of
Trustees shall review and approve the internat audit plan; and

WHEREAS, Section 262.07(a) of the Authority's Codified Rules and Regutations
("Code") requires the Executive Director of internal Audit to submit, at least annually, to the
General Manager, CEQ, executive management and the Board of Trustees a risk-based internal
audit plan for review and approval, and

WHEREAS, Section 262.07(d) of the Code requires the Exacutive Director of internal
Audit to communicate to the General Manager, CEQ, executive management and the Board of
Trustees any significant interirn changes to the internal audit plan; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of Internal Audit prepared an audit pfan for 2022,
consulted with and considered feedback from the Board of Trustees, the General Manager,
CEO and executive management, in accordance with the professional standards of the Institute

of Internal Auditors; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of Internal Audit has submitted the 2022 internal
Audit Plan to the General Manager, CEQ and executive management; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director of Internal Audit hereby submits the 2022 Internal
Audit Plan for approval by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the 2022 internat Audit Plan ("Plan™), which is substantially in the form of
the attachment hereto, has been reviewed and is approved and the Executive Director of
Internal Audit is hereby directed to inform the Board of Trustees, General Manager, CEQ and
executive management of any significant interim changes to the Plan.

Section 2, That this resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: 2022 Audit Plan

Adopted. March 29, 2022

Fresident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT
OCTOBER 1, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

[ ) 2022 (PROPOSED) INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN | 1

Project Budgeted Success
Hours Cutcome(s)

COVID-19 Activities
American Rescue Plan - Federal Grant 80 11 HI

Cansulting Projects

Audit Management System Replacement 200 v
Data Analytics 160 R
Fraud Risk Assessment 240 1511V
iPPF — Internal/External Assessment 240 IV
Third-Party Risk Assessment 240 L
Continuous Auditing

Accounts Payable 200 181
Accounts Receivable 200 1811
Nepotism 160 v
Payrali 240 1iRAY;
Paratransit Eligibility/Cerification 160 1
Purchasing Card Expenses 160 HILIV
Revenue Collection 160 1

Contract Audits

ATU Contract Implementation 160 1,1V
Advertising Agency 160 EALIAY
Comprassed Natural Gas Vehicle Replacement 160 RIRIH
Cammon Area Maintenance - Tower City 200 L
Compensation Study 200 AL
Hayden Garage Roof Replacement 200 LIV
Health Care Expenses 240 th
Heavy Rail Motor Overhaui 160 §LH I
Heavy Rail Vehicle Replacement 500 (NIRIH:
Laptop Replacement Program 240 HINAYS
Main Office Building HVAC Replacement 200 LV
Revenue-generating Advertising 200 LI
Tower City East Portal Rehabilitation 200 LI
Viaduct Rehabilitation 200 LI
External Audits

Financial Audit Support 160 ILHI
Federal Transit Administration - Triennial Review 100 H
Public Transit Agency Safety Plan 340 I
Systern Security Plan 200 i



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHQRITY
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT
OCTOBER 1, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBEER 31, 2021

information Technology Audits

Change and Patch Management 160 HINAY
Consaolidated Train Dispatch System 160 FHILIV
Cyber Liability/Testing 160 v
Disaster Recovery 200 NI
Information Technology Govermnance 240 HIHAY
Maintenance-Management Systerm Upgrade 200 HIIV
QOperator Time & Attendance Systemn Upgrade 200 Hi v
Oracle Systerm Upgrade/Migration 400 i,
RiskMaster/Oracle Intarface 160 il
Transit Police Body Cameras 200 [RiNY
internal Audits

Absence Control - FMLA 200 HIRAY
Accrued l.eave 160 i, 1v
Blank Ticket Stock 160 1|
Cash Collections Sites 160 LIV
Customer Service Center - Tower City 160 1L
Fare Media Inventary/Qistribution 200 ln
Federal Infrastructure Grant 160 RNl
Hiring Practices 240 v
Overtime 200 LIV
Farts Inventory - Cycle Counting 200 it
Petty Cash 100 HI
Records Retention 160 Hl
Scorecard Data/Information 160 LLHLIV
Travel Reimbursement 120 [

Revenue Collection Audits

Fare Collection Contract/Cantrols 200 144
Maobile Revenue Pass Collections 200 1IN
Special Requests & Emerging lssues 2000

Success Quicomes

l. Customer Experience

il Community Value

ill. Financial Sustainahbility
IV. Employee Engagement

“The chief audit executive must establish a risk-based plan lo defermine the priorities of the
internal audit activity, consistent with the organization's goals” - Institute of Internal Auditing
Standards - Flanning 2010,



Form 100-326
0703-97

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIFTION: Resolution No.:

APPROVING A NEW THREE-YEAR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 2022-28
AGREEMENT WITH ATU, LOCAL 268 Date:

March 24, 2022

Imitiator:
Human Resources

ACTION REQUEST,
& Approval 0 Review/Comment i Information Only 11 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOQSE/SCOPRE: This action will approve a new three-year Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) with Local 268 of the Amalgamated Transgit Union (ATU, Local 268).
The term of the new agreement will be from August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2024 The
new agreement describes the "Conditions of Employment” for GCRTA employees covered
by ATU, Local 268 bargaining unit, which generally includes bus and train operators;
station attendants; mechanics and other maintenance employees; first-line supervisors;
various clerical and administrative personnel, and various other miscellaneous positions.
Employees covered by this new agreement number approximately 78% of the GCRTA's
2,100 currently active positions.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The previous CBA with ATU, Local 268, expired at
midnight on July 31, 2021 and continued in effect until this new agreement was
negotiated. Negotiations for a new agreement commenced in July of 2021. Numerous
joint bargaining sessions occurred during July 2021 and February 2022 between
representatives of ATU, Local 268 and the GCRTA. These negotiations culminated in a
tentative agreement being reached between the parties on February 16, 2022, for a new
three-year CBA. The agreement was approved by union membership on March 15, 2022,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The subject action has important policy implications, principally in the
areas of cost control and service quality.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The estimated costs and savings associated with the major
econcmic provisions of the new agreament will be provided to the Board of Trustees,

ALTERNATIVES: Not approve the new three-year agreement as proposed. Management
would be required to direct the staff to return to the bargaining table with ATU, Local 268,
to seek further changes or revisions or go to Fact Finding through the State Employea
Relations Board (SERB.)

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the
proposed new three-year labor agreement with ATU, Local 268.

ATTACHMENTS: Noane

Recommended and certified as appropriate
to the availability of funds, legal form and
conformance with the Procurement requirements.

P

general Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28

APPROVING A NEW THREE-YEAR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
AGREEMENT COVERING CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT WIiTH LOCAL
268 OF THE AMALGAMATED TRANSIT UNION

WHEREAS, the previous Collective Bargaining Agreement between Local 268 of the
Amalgamated Transit Union and the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA),
established on August 1, 2019, expired at midnight on July 31, 2021 but continued in effect until
a new agreement was negotiated; and

WHEREAS, collective bargaining between representatives of L.ocal 268 of the
Amalgamated Transit Union and representatives of the GCRTA has produced a new Collective
Bargaining Agreement covering the period from August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the members of Local 268 of the Amalgamated Transit Union have
approved the new successor Collective Bargaining Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Collective Bargaining Agreement for employees represented by
Local 268 of the Amalgamated Transit Union be and it is hereby amended by incorporating the
changes, modifications, additions and deletions as negotiated by the representatives of ATU,
Local 268 and the GCRTA, to become effective retroactive to August 1, 2021 and continue

through July 31, 2024,
Section 2. That said agreement will be funded through the General Fund.

Section 3. That the Coliective Bargaining Agreement, as amended, be and hereby is
approved, and the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute said

agraament.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adopted: March 29, 2022

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ETToH %EE LT PEFAIE L % ET69IH'6E §  MI'sty  § ®K0OoT %83 LT THEZEE'E §  IETESSST § BISTBEEE
HsTtT HESLY GESGIE SEH'IBE SO F8S HER'D - 013%ST Z6E Ll LHE'TOT
WG - - - ¥ - S w0oD - - - 5 -

%000 - - H - $ wDD - - - $

%000 - - 3 - 5 WOND - - - s -

%000 - - - 13 - S wDUD - - - H -

4T SIS [t SEaS 3 GLE'TEE % WEED WtEBIT ETdigs ) OBE'KE o BOF'SS
HO0'0 - - - 13 - 5 WD - . - $ -

%oo'a - - g - S wNoD - - - 3 -

%000 L9 A [1a0°ez) IFITT -7y § § RIeD {%5e96} [L2€TETH ITT'EE 5 88T
HAET HER T FEOHT SHSSTE 4 TEFEst WD - FOTSZT - S BDI'SEE
ETERS KIE'SEP S9EERET TAHIEEE EEPSTLT ®IL'T P PST S25T IBSEST ETT 5%
%00 WET G GETTL BELLE 5 BEFFE [ - aF0T it S EFIST
%00 [36E0'5a] [TEs'TTY qerat 3 BEfS $ RIGD iy gs] {ee2'sd BOEE % TLEE
%IT0 [560LTE] {75 2h LBE'SE L wAos $ 0 Wale {HERTS) {E22'vT; BRE'LHr 4 9oE'ET
®EED - ET¥'BLT - §  BEFSLT L - - - 5 -

HS'E - SYLEER'T BESTIE 9 8 5H3'T $  HESE - LELERE CIP'EG $  ZES'ERE
HEH'9E =0T TT STT DS T EBRGE THLEPS'OY RIGoH HIEE GELURT BOE'ERE'LT FEEE59'ET
AaEYE %GEIT SLTOSG TR'EETIE 5 TRTEPSEDE 5 ®ISSE STER EIFE-TES ESETEELT & STGBEA'ST
WIOE wetis LET'SES'T TLE' TR Lot HEETL HEL T SRR LT GSTETET BET LT
HEFT %1g9z STTBSI 09e'#ER S &ER%Eas § wElt WIS LEE' 13T ST § ¥DErEE
HeLl - O£E'45L O0erty §  or2'aoe 4 HISE - 045 EBL 3T $ FE0R
®ELD - 48T ETTET §  BAL'ESE § OWSHT - TER'TEE SETOT 5 TA5TEE
WET'Z HETIT 590'D83 L9E'LEE & HEEUI'T $  HATT HEITL 98776 BELYI  § BOOYGTS
WELT HEL'S LEFDE 5 TOR'SEEY 5 BAT9ET 5 WSEE HEFTT SOE'RL % 56308% 5 Dobssa
TIOLAD % FONVHIE FINYEHTA [LET) ali WEOL40% IDNVHDR JINTEEYA HENDW HLTEOW
ANIgHAD TZ0% 02 ANFHHID YA By ERIHHAD

TE0T "9 AYYNYATA QWY ZTOT BT AUYNYEIS GI0ONI Q0IE3d IH1 404

THNd TRHEINID - V3L WD d U1 BTHVANGS G3AI034 HEYD 20 180d2H

ALHOHENY EISHYHE IYNOISIE ANYIZATD 3103 E0 IHL

GNO TYEIND - OFAI303E HSW D TWARL

HEYD 40 SEJUA0F U3HLD Ol SINIWISHNEWEY T EDIENS
ANFIISHNANITE WL NIESTOM - FHEDDYA QEAGD
JUY TS
SR w0
17 539D TvuI0as
SLdEI 3 S0INY TSN
IINYLSFSSY DNILYHZE0 TVHIES
(LW THI0T 11948 o303 T WY NALKIYIN S NAATES
SHOEW W TVIO0T 1908 "y 3038) LIISENBNITE L vy
SONMATH KL INPA0Y O3NS

HEVFT 30 53 T6II0S FAHAD GV SINIFVISS TR IZE

IININTH YPIHLG TLOLANS
H3IHIC
FMNOOINE LSIHASME
SWOK THLKIE
SHOISIRNOT 5537 SEKDIY DININYAE
SNOISSIINO S RO S IONO I ONISLEHIA0Y
EEn TTEEEE T

SALEISENS SHILVIIA0 I LDERNS
XYs I50 2 SIWSE
SITSENS DRI FEIS0

STV YIOWASTYd TULOLENS
SHULTATEL IO
S5Ed-f)
SCHYIIHYS INIONES - J5WD
STIVE LIAJELISSYY
S3ued HEVD

BN LT [



SOETAT [E2-T3 {L8L°ET9PE] & IOTS60y 5 EGGEMSE §  KOpOOT {3czep] [FIL9ES'cTk & BISTIBEET SEIOES DY 13
HELT [EEET {S65'ZET0) SO L8S [T %580 [§3] [esa"ae'0z] TETOL SO0 DL DT
0a0 - - - - %000 - - - -

g - 100000 0] 000060 0F 000 - [a00oodoet CO0000'0Z
00 - - - - wDID - - -

H - - - - wWOID - - - -

HOED WEPTS SL6'TE BLB'TET D00 HEED HISEE BOSE R ooy

HOFD - - - - w0 - - - -

*a3n - - - - #00p - - - -

D [2E0 £6) 1STE'ES5] SBET sk pAGEY 155046 [s¥2"92) SBLT GHTE

HREED [a0ae) JESE'DTT) 55T OHES TS L] {372 80k [Esgtect OTSTT OO0
P3R0Y pH - UOREIOHY TEOT

SEIE LT LTH'SL EECOTL] =T TR I8z EOETL EET96Y OTF'EEE
RLFE 1960 991 SLE5'ss] BZ'FE DOFHET wAED 6T 5] [T Era HH0DE

WG {592 £6) [£a: T3] 2ELS DDE'SGT . T103+] 1SS 6k [BET9st TiR'E EL ]

HITH %ET9T FLFYE BEPHS ok R HEE'EE Jan'g I'ET ooz

HEED %0 L5t [£BEET) BIFBLT iy w0 - [oTeTzE] - OTE'TZT
HeOE - ESEERTT EFESTE DEGT0E HEST TEGTRE TEB'ENE oon'z

B0 GE HIEH ISEOIE'E TRTEHE O EDE'ELTLE %ITEE HET'L GEOETET PIO'EESRT Y56 THrE'RT
a0 %I63 LSTGIEE TET eSOy EESTIILE WIS BATE oe0eTE's PEY'EIY'ET PSETFE'ET
HIOE 1615 FESISE'T BETELTY tooa5LY ST HEL'EE YEEBRET BETHEL T STHEHET
%7Y'E %ETGI 1E£00T SEEEOL FESEDD HNELT HTSET GLB'FS PO LSS SPB'ZEE
BT - L8808 DL2°908 . HESE - 08858 OLB'R0E -

®ei'd - E5TSVE 5T ESE 2007 H5T'E - T9BTrE THE'THE 0oa'T

HBL'T [T 6 [rt0'coTt 556°LT0'T S00TET'T %a7T 4.5 34| {96R'TT] BTG DE'TES
HSET WESBE FLT9EE 4§ BLTOEET 5 e0N00D't L wEIE 00F'SSE 5 DOr'5s9 DO0EA ]
TWLIOL 40 % FONVHIR En TR ala 139005 a1 WI0140% IDNTHIN TINYIEA HEM DI HiNGIN
ANTHEHD ik Fantd FLTETH ENFEEOD 139404

xRNy PREINID - LIS GL JIYTIRE0D OFAIF0THE MEYD IO LH0S3d

TEOT ‘BT NEYHIHEAS G0N O0I¥3d IHL WG

ALCHEFHLITY LISBERHL THMORDTH GNYTENATTY d3Lvadn 3H)

LENAE TrdSNID - QIAMEIIHE HSY3 V0L

HEWZ 30 S33UN05 BIHLD ANV SINIWISENEWEY TYLOLaNS
ENIPISENBEIEY ELY MISLEICAY - INISIWA Qi
duv TrElaad
WYSHHED 17EITY
277 534w TwEIgad
54613038 SNOIRVTIIISIN
IINVLSISSY DMELYEILD TrEIaTd
JH2LEA 19207 "IEVES "TeHI034] IONYNELNIIE TaENTATd
[HILW TYIOT "HYLS ToHI034F L2l IETRMEMETY 1Y
SOSNEASE WYl AN E0dd/DNTA3Nd

HEYD 30 $3I5R03 HIHED ONY SINIESBiginas

INNANIE YIHLO WLLEANS
HIHIO
JWGINI 1SALNI
IS0 TYLNTY
SROISSERINGT 5531 SLHSIY DRI
SHRISTIA MO/ SHOISS NG ORIS L I ALY
FNIAFE BIRIG

SIHFBAS DRHITHILD T LDEANS
AWE 35N R SATS
SSJNEIISENS INEL 4D

5342 YIONISTYd TWLRLENS
DHELTHIN TUFOW
£3vdA
SOV INZALS - SN
S31%5 139011/55%d
SFHYS HEY]D

BT PEETE 2



SO aL Tl e TR POC¥OT
T Wl L FELEFE0FS
RiF G foTA: AR L51'FERDES
JONTIEYA  JONVHD VALY
183 % als % OEL 10T LA
TE0Z ENSHIA ZEOT TTET

Jn_LINS3 2207 Yey) 4aybiy (020'790'98) %0r 01
1enay 1207 veyl Jauby (221°402'24) %1971

GlA

BIRWINSS 7207 Yourly vByl Jaudiy (207 FF 73] %T0EL
BN 1202 Ye uelyl Jeubly ($50°/51E) %8e sl

TTEPOLYOS OSOFSEE'IFES  GFe VIDELIS
Lryans'ozs {5278 02s
LIE'LST'OEE ] SEPOZEDEE
FSE'0TE'IEE ] SVOBK LTS
LZB'GIFEES | SEZ'9LE°LTS
BZOESE'ELS § QUS'TTELES
FIETLRL'LES | £R9'90L07%
SFEBERLES § FED'FLENLES
LOO'B05'£LE £ BEs e LS
debraz e o zpEies'als
Z08'00T eSS ST LGL IS BOFCAESoE %ZOTE WEE'S) | 19zeETs | sspi0ize |ooss'rooois
STG'TET L% ESU'ERR'OSS O6E'ESL9EE %ald WEEH | PEO'SSYELS | PSS LPC'OLS | SOE'TEEZLE
66'0BS'ELS FSLOLSBLE  FELEOE'TIS LAY %EFEL | LG3PEROZE | snS0sE'EiS [ $5LGLS'RLS
ETETEEE] THOLOT WRLOE EIRTTHCE] IOHVHD WALV ENCTTEEE] IOV
Lk aLk i ¥y KTHENOW BZ0Z % HINDK ZEOT 2EnE HEOZ
bt 417 bZ0T GZOT SNSHIA VALY  120T
LTHINOW SMNSYIA
LI0Z Fad i1

220Z HOUVIN HONOHKL S14EA034 Tvnlov
S3AVL 38N aNY S371vS
ALHOHLAOY LISNVHL TYNOIDOTFY ONYT3AT I ¥ALVYIHO

BH IV LIS
SCO'EEERLS
EoE LED" 1S
152025 BES
ESRESDHIS
PELTEE LS
BEY'FOE'ELS
F61'926°G: 8
Z0:'EET GRS
SHOOF BES
$L¥ELTTLES
PHEISE RIS
FEL'COEBES

THALDY
0T

yiuop

Aleunrung

WEDA
HIARWIOIG
HIFWIACH

HIBGLIC
3N 1435
ER:akaial
Alnr

Eiclrn

AN

TddY
HOHV
Advynya3S
AWM

[sELTEREF
HLNGRH



SOVHIAY

YA 0% FEEOLEES
WOz O 3 0% SFEBET LS
L5E0 E os 90¥'08%
LA 0% £EE'GLE'CRY
BEE T 4 753 ZBS'LOLE
YEED 3 03 0Eg'0oLS
UGED L 0% A98°9F8'0%
w0z D 3 0% SEp' 0L 'aeS
SLTO SER'0SES
W0Z'g I oF EG0'pog
WBEED L 913 tra'soLy
WOT 0 0% B55'081'FS
R ! i3 £05's04
%0ZT'G L 0% GEO'CE:'S
WEED LLE"8rs 50T 19508
Sy ! 0E IBE'PSE'ELE
WEOD L 0% 54570848
%10 L 5 FlE'azs
%5E0 ' 0% 55E'9E%
SOZ0 0% 8890 EES
LT L LBQL  SDE'tt GO0'oo0'es
559570 Lilk  #89'GLS SRLIVEEFS
%80 BLOL GRS UG CEEPE
AT EF Hz'cs FEE'96SFE
%25°0 0iA LA 005005 sE
LSS 88/ BL8'Z18 005" £66'FS
WEED L 0% SZ0'LIES
%L 0L 4 SE3'SLE'SS
%BLE 0zl an0L'Ls FAR Y
Er¥ce| { 0% £22'800'5S
O73IA  ALIHNAYIN ESTHSIN] TvdioMiNg
ITVHIAAY OL SAWO OINuD0V T¥LOL

- -

—

-

SE03
SE04
S804
52t
S0
SE0E

gLl

=

SAVD
AM31L

Z o 1 abey

GHHG 40 2iv1S
HNYE ATM

HNYE ATH

HNWE AT

HNYE ATH
CHHO 40 2Ev4S

CIHO d0 31vis
4AIMASHNTT AT

HNYE ATH
OIHD 40 3Evis

HNYE AZH
HANYE NOESMEENH
HNYH hid
HNwE AIH
QIHO 20 JLVLS
SIOOIN 131LS
S IO2IN 134ILS
ST 02N 13dILS
SHLEHNIIS SOLTHH
SNYIQ0IN 1341LS
SNYI0TIN 1341LS
HNYE AW

HRYE NOLSMIINOH
HEYE NOLORILNAH
HOUNLLLSN]

CiHG UVES
HI3 AOM

HOE ATARISYE HOLYD
HII NS
HIZ A-HIEWN 9207
CHR0 B LS HILYIN 19207

CIHG WUYLS
LHFRTIBOSMT T

H33 A3AH
CIRG WYLs

H3 A
LNMO20Y K¢l S3IWS
AWM ABGLENT SNd
AN ALIALDY S3A0TdWS
QHO #9.S
-2
=HEE|
AGOSYIHE SN
d3 YHINI
1R
8243
LRI AT LDOY TNYHDHIW

CTOZILE
CZ0ZLE

ZE0LLE
L2021
ZEOEILE
CCOEfIE

TToziLeg
ZEOZLE

EtanrA N
ZE0EILE

ZZOZILE
LA NS
CE0E/LIE
£Clere
EEEILIE
GEOENTIE
ELARTAL A
FEOESLIEL
LEOTISLIE
FEOTIOTIE
FIGELIE
SEOTVE

WiHINSYS 804 1118 AENSYIHL 220271805

1MUY AINCN
LNZINNHLENI

ZZ0Z ‘82 AYVYNHE3d 40 SV
SINJWLSTANI AUNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIAN!
ALHORLNY LISNVHL TYNCIDIY ONYIS3AID NI3LYIHD

FAAVEA R
3iva

CE0ZIREE
FtaAurA s rird

EALNEAL AT
EAANEA) v
TEOZMREE
EAAN A AT

ONNF NOISNTS TrLol

OMFed MOHSNIA
TN HILVW TY307 IWLI0L

OMEE HOLYIN T30

ONNZE AINIWIDHOING MY TYLOL

LEOZiREE
LZhgrmeee

AN AT
CELOEIREE

ZEOEMREE
EEDLMHEE
ZE0LfEeE
ZEOEMREE
CCOEMHEE
ZTOLILE
LEOEMSEL
FEDEMSLAEL
LEgamLitl
ErAATA
VEDEfLIE
cehergnE

aNMd ERIWITHOINT AT
0NN I VHISN WLl

M SONYHNSNE

ONOH TYHINZD T¥L0L

CHNZ TWdINEs

ONfIH INIFWSHIL TN ONOE TYLoL

BECT/SIG
LE0TIBERE

2LYG

ALIMNLYIW 3SYHOUNd

OGN0 INIWTHE 34 INCE
QN



%820

%BITO
%GE0
HWEED
St 0
%GED
%BELD

Wrio
WFeD
WEED
WoEG
WLZC
Sty
WSED

103

ig
ail
28l

£as
FGE
LG
7L
GEb
L

0i3'/8%

S35
i
0%
£e0'Lg
P T AR
osi'vs

TLB'HLS

grg
AIEES
ELEFS
ChETS
095

0%

QTHA  ALIENIYN ESIHIING
FDVHIAY 0L SAYA ganNy2ov

JovHIAY

052°018'262%

B0Z'5EF 55
SrEEPE RS
OLEFOLE
00" 156'FS
Z#0'SEBE6'FS
GGLTEE'TS

PEX'BEZE LS

05 'B6FS
003002 ES
GLE'¥EE' S
00000028
000'000'5%
£0S'GEF' 5%

IVdEoNIEd
THLOL

SE0L
SEDL
¢ig

Z601L
5631

SAYD
LSRR

Z 1o 7 abey

QIO 20 LVES
HNYE AT
S3LENI2S 0LTIH
SFHIUNIZS JOLTUH
SRiUN5S3S S0L0THH

OIHC BY1S
HIA ASH
0 ANXLWN
<3 ANXLWH
20 MkYE WY

SMYICDIN 1341Ls LB
SNYICDIN 1341Ls BJ44
SINLIHAZIS JOLTI A3 ANMIYN
SMYI00IN 134148 g1H4
SNVIOOIN 133148 g1Hd
HNYE ATH Y33 ATH
HMOLLOLEESN! ANIWNAHLISNI
ZTOT ‘8T AWVNUAIS 40 SV

SINIFWLSIANI AMNSVIUL 40 AHOLNIANI

Zegie
ELATILIE
CEOLfHe
CTOEFLTIS
CEOTTLIS

FEOTIPIE
FEOLSY
EE0TrELs
LrAA N
PEOZIOEM
CEOTILE

ALYE

ALENLYIN ISVHOuRM

ALIEOHLNY LISNYYL TYNCISTY GNYIIATD B3 LvIALD

ZE0ZiREE
ETOTIBERE
EE0ZRBL
EEIZIREN
LEQZISLE

LA
EECTAL
EFANAL
LEGEIOEG
LEoTiaTie
eE0TIeTE

Fiva

SONME TV I¥LOL
ONAIS BANISIY TWLOL

AN IAH353E
ONAD THLEWYD Yy Teior

OGN TYLIYD vy
aNBd



5958

£ZZ'Bo0'5%
Jawainay pucy

GOOGLELR' LIS E O0OSE YOS OLE | 00 000'5ES8S gOnSE's9L' 1S ! noose'sal s | goos SO0SE'E0LES DO DDOOSE S
COo0s 1eg'L 00 0GL G2 L 007 0on o0’ GO5:'s.E NO0RLSSIE Qo4 QO DSL'SLE 00°C00'0E0° L&
COOSE'005'L 0GSES 4801 J00a0's8L'L COSE9'20Z 00'SES'Z0E ana O S2SE0T COO00'soL's
GOacs'Zey'y J0'SLE'900' ao000'0Es's COSLE'SBY QG2 08F oo OO SIE'95F Q0 C0OSSE'S:
D0OS8'SZR'L OBV EST'L O0'O00'ses e COSiE ivd UGLiF il (IR QO'GL¥ ivL COC0'sL5'S
DOCSE'EEE T O SZL'EREE O0OC0's8e's 0O0SEL 45 JoeEL'sg Ca'a 005ZL'ig OOacH'ssE'e
LS AT ZEOEIMTL ZZOTILTE AT AR A SZOTILIG ZZQTIL CEOTIRG FEOZIE L
wsaiinbay | guatuaynbay fagediey 2nefed Adswaimbay Eigeled gefed Bujpueising
gen | BT WA |ediauit 1S3 BT BT pedioung 1SITILE edisung 3o )

2202 '8T AMVAYEId J0 8Y

SNLVYLiS ONY 3ING3HIS 30IANSS 1930

ALMOHLNY LISNYYL TYNOIDTY GNYIEAZD H3LYIHD

Padinbay apIsy 195 Awpuory

{zzoz Joy apisy 185) aourjeq wauny

OEQE 380
LE0Z 38
FE07 320
SZOE 00
220 030
areq
LATRLTEITY
FeUE

sSpuog |ejoL
A3y KB S3|BS-§L0T S2uag
hEY KB S53jES-010T SAUSS
hIY KB] S3eS-5L0T SIS

AT XE] SIES-YRIOL S|USg

AY XE SRRG-ZL0F seUsg
splog



B0
YSED

%00
Yil0
EARNE
WlO0
%o bO D
%il0
%lG0
%il0
%100
%00
%00
Y0
#0734

A
WFS0 %BE 0 LIGBO0ES
W80 WD gLoBed
%5800 %BLE D LGRS
%S00 %L D BSE'BES
S50 SEL 0 Z12'0rs
ALy SHELD vli'LES
SO0 WELD 268'08%
GO0 gL 0 £GE'LSE
AT o) AT £E6'TES
WAOC %O 0 BEOLES
®/BOD %ZT 0 ZZe'ies
UAD0 ULED £HR'50E
%010 LET0 PrE'sEs
#OEMA Iy ETY Q3NHY3
I3MuVIN  JuYONYLIS S[DVHIAY  1SINILN

[ daFA

Fis g e T R

v GRE TACS
ZTEL 1985828
ERLBB'ELTE
SELGTE'ELES
LELOSCERES
9B0'e. 'BEES
BLE'¥00 1678
B19'Ze6'L5Eg
046'0E9922%
236104 'EEES
LLERITLYES
{54'SLE [¥7S
IONVIVE
JOVHIAY

pA A pTAsRe
%idD %iZQ
%00 %ET G
%00 SaB1
#JT3A #4073
LEMEY CGuYINYLS

Pty A2Q 4 pund feuoi Alnseasl it sienbs Pl 1enem 4

g0

#ET0
%610
ERETTA

JFOVHEIAY

[£4:4

2TOT '8Z AMYNHE3S HONOWHL 31v0 OL ¥YIA
FONVINHOIUID INIWISIANI 4O ABYININAS

ALIMOHLNY LISNYHL TYNCIOZH ONYIIATTD ¥I1¥IND

'SiEE AINSBBI | IO G 10y SPiBIA Juaeanbs uodnao afiejsae Suinom #

XIANE {HIENM HIA0 SOTTIA IOVHIAY V1N

FY-F NI L55'558'9.7

O5E'L¥S BES'GSZ BT

IGE'EEY ELFCiFrLeS
RETE] JoNYIvE
1STHINS IoVHIAY

Z1V0 QL Yvaa

H3813030

HIAGWIADN

H330130

HIBWS 1435

1snany

AN

INAr

AW

Mo

HOEYW

AW rHE3S

AUVEINYT
HENGH



T5Es
LE31S
ZEes
OE'GY
Z8'0%

SCEiFE

£5°258%

55 ¥EPS
SEFEFS

OLLBSTLE
EL882'08
Q02i8'es
047CE
L3S
159014
LY Ori'es
B00%

PLZES

E0OLLE

8976
it

£io i afey

V0 OL ¥Y3A LZ0E
L0 0L ¥v3A TE0T
ZZOZ AdviHgss

2L¥0 OL Hv3A 208
FLWD 0L ¥vHA 2202
ZZ0E AUYNHET S

L% 01 8¥3A LEGZ
310 01 ¥v3A 2202
LE02 AHYNEE34

ALYT OL Ww3A 1202
JiV3 OL Wv3A 2202
€207 Advivdg34

HHOMYLS
ANAODOY IS MNYE AT
QNNd INSWISH0INT M

OIHOHEYLS
UNNd IONYANSNI

LNNOTOY d33MS HNYE AT INNODIDY INYHOH3IW
INNOZOV AGCLSND ONd

INAOITY dITMNS MNYE AT

GIHOWY1S

INNODIV XYL SITYS-NOLONILNNH

ANNd TYaINZD

1THHYN AINOW NOLONILNNH
ONN4 ANSANSSILTSE aNoY

Z0T A¥YN=g3d
{SISYA HSVD) SONINNYI INIWISIANI NO 1¥0d3y
ALIECHLAY LISNYYHL TWNOIDFYE ONVISATTD ¥31v3N9



LEsS
FEOPD'LLS
TS5BS L%
25 o¥%
OO0SL0LS
0000ss

FLLS
LS
SO 0%
S50%

EGB0LE
76 L5CE
SEBFLE
L50%
g8'irLS

ELGOP'ErS
POOEF'OSE
029658t
947885

PP e0s'es

£ jo 7 abeg

3190 O Jv3A L1202
31Y0 OL Y9=A 2202
ZEIE AMYHE3S

3iV0 OL J¥3A L20E
A1V3 OF Wv3A 20T
ZZ0Z Advhi€a3d

3AV0 OL Yv3A L2302
JIVQ GL UvY3s 2202
L0 AdYnyg34

LW Ol ¥Y3A LE0T
JL¥d Ol ¥v3A 2202
0T AMYNHg3L

2202 Advnug3d

LNROTOY d33MMS MNYE AT
&g1HA

WA

OMNd TV LdYD Y1

LAY ASNOIN MNYE ATN
LNAGIIY ALIALLDY JIA0TJA3

LNAGIOY d33ANS HNVE ATH
QIHCYYLS
OlNOd KOISKId

LNOICOOY d93MS MNYE ATY
HOLVIN YO0 T-OIHOYY LS
aNAd HOLVYIE Y001

(SISVE HSYO)} SONINYYI INSWLSIANI NG La0d3u
ALIOHLNY LISNYVHL TYNCIDIY ONYISAZ 1D ¥ILvINe



£ 0§ abey

%ZZ' 0 ez D BENTWLSIANI NO JTIIA 30vEIAY
L55'Go8'0/7S CLY'SivyiTs ‘ {1S02) IONYIYE LNINLSIANT IOWHIAY
arL'8s4 08" Ly 'G3INYYI INOSNI LSTHIIN!
048°20% 0/8'20% ONIONT
(bGS'cZLE) {g66'09%) ISNINNIDTSE
JASIHIINI G3NHOOY
LEF'PELS 208'vES {SISYS HSYD) QIAISDIH 1SIHTIINI
3193 oL ANvYNug3d
HYIA ZZ0Z
0¢'509'66% JLIVCQ O MV3A 1202
£9°0sH'pELS JLYO OL ¥Mv3aA 2202
16°205'28 ZTOZ AYVNHgE3d SANNH 1TV WLOoL
BF ZH0'SHS J1vQ OL HY3IA L2027
I ETE'95% JLI¥QA O4 ¥v3IA 2202
LLP0L"E8 2E0Z AMviNg3d
LECED INNOOTY d3IMS MNYS ATM
Or'229'68

OIHOHYLS
QNAd IAEISIY
EZ0Z A¥vYNYE3d

(SISYE HSYD) SONINNYI INIWLSIAN] NO 1H0d3y
ALIMOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIDIHE ONYIIAIID N3Lv3Ne



ot
808

1

ALIEOLYN
JOYHIAY

%3Z0
%580
SeEZ’0
%HEED
%bZ'0
%SED
%EZ0
anara
JOYHIAY

%00 GO
%0801
eS8
wWB9OL
el 32
%90
%0LE
avigs

20 INITHId

vLi8'8PE L6TS
00Q'05L'08%
00&'000'6ES
1ZL85TIES
EL9'eLr 6618
LieLzzs
£28'5¥1'0%
INNCWY
30V

05£'048'Z628
PGB YL 0CS
FZ5'0I6'PTS
LZL'ISTLES
ELO'EIFEELS
ie'zzs
728'5r1'9%
THdIDNEd

ZZOZ ‘8T AMVNNEL4 SV

OITOFLH0d INSWNISIAN] 40 NOILISOdIWOD

QHOLEO S JUBLEIS3ALL jBJO |
SIGUNDSS JUSLILISACT "2
laded |BroasLalon
ooy siey padn sbujuieg
GUD el
Noosy desmg yueg Aoy
ROy JRey; ASUo)y
JUBLENIISL|



UOREWIOHN] JEEHHIpPE 10
OFOZ0T "ON UDANMOSAY S3SNIL |0 QUSAE PUT FT0 JMPIOCUD SARESIHWEY (4304 [BagiL) ACLINY JsUz] jeuniTEy pOREAG)T JHERID FU1 40 SUO3ENAIY pue SANY RAIPOD B4 40 954 @1deys 6l 13330 asea|y
TTOT L2 YH2p pRaep AZUSifp) 16349 "y 07 uoldn ucsiapy HEISENISSHUED SORY33 Qi
BO-TIGE JBGLUNK YCIHED LOISSHULEDN $25U35 QIS
DEOT 'S AR palep [s1ie))y (2851 - o) ploluag Burg pusys 0F vmndD Asipy 325 \FOESSIUNGIOT) SDEL3 QY
TP 0N E00E J9QUUnN Load]) [Beuo Ul EoSEILIEDT) SIYE QD
[31 poe {]E0 707 Sue1035 SpAD SUsIASE O
SUElA BALRIEDRECD Ul B O) 5|2 NIALPLI Blgqexpdde Jof oapiacud Fuiag 51 LA L2 S5L )

SFAON
adpaH [@ndq yueg SLEEH oY
18415195y pacy UDERLY HIO MEH JO jEeg
FBUNE2ALFORO Y15
ER RN T
NSy X8| STES PUE JUSWRAINAY pucy YUBY woiPuELnE
SUNOEY MUY BIUL Y33
PJED HPAXY [rUE JIN03Yy |22Ra15NT HHEE Divd
S3UFs UG Lep: AU A3y
diysuoIeIad 10 aingep WOIINIIEU| {RIIUE LI S UEG
TEOL BT Aenigag o sy

sdysusaepy @oUBEE pue Juikueg
froyiny usued) [euo|Say purpAR]] JB1ERIS



